
AGENDA 
Board of Library Trustees  

Budget Committee | Altadena Library District 
Virtual – Zoom – May 5, 2022 – 1:00 p.m. 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING MAY 5, 2022 BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING 

This meeting will be conducted utilizing teleconference and electronic means consistent with the 
State of California Executive Order N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, regarding the COVID-19 
pandemic and Altadena Library District Board of Trustees’ Resolution 2021-05. The live stream 
of the meeting may be viewed by visiting the Altadena Library District’s YouTube channel at the 
following URL https://www.youtube.com/c/AltadenaLibrary   

SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: For those wishing to make Public Comments at the May 
5, 2022 Meeting, please submit your comments by email to be read aloud at the meeting. If 
multiple comments are submitted, only the first comment will be read aloud during the meeting. 
Email and Electronic Comments submitted online will be accepted up to two (2) hours prior to the 
start of the meeting. Email comments can be submitted to hello@altadenalibrary.org with the 
subject line: “Public Comment”. Electronic Comments may also be submitted online at 
www.altadenalibrary.org/publiccomment. If you wish to make your public comment during the live 
meeting, please state so in your email or select “Yes – I want to provide this comment in real-time 
and need the Zoom link” in the online form.  

Email and Electronic Comments will be submitted to the legislative body and shall become part of 
the record of the meeting.  

If you are unable to submit via email or the online, you can call in to (626) 798-0833 ext. 118, 
during the corresponding item of the agenda.  For public comment on any non-agenda item, 
please plan to call at 1:00 pm. 

PUBLIC REQUESTS FOR DOCUMENTS: The District provides a public inspection copy of all 
materials included in the agenda packet distributed to the Board members. Members of the public 
who wish to obtain a copy of any document may do so by completing a Request for Public 
Document form and submitting it to Administration who will arrange for the documents to be 
copied at a charge of 15¢ per page. Request forms are available at the District Administration 
offices. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you need special assistance to participate 
in the meeting, please contact Library Administration at (626) 798-0833 x118 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting so the Altadena Library District may make reasonable arrangements to 
ensure accessibility to the meeting. 

LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: The Altadena Library District acknowledges its presence on the 
traditional, ancestral, and unceded land of the Gabrielino Tongva peoples. Altadena is located on 
the stolen homelands of the Xaxaamonga (Hahamongna) tribal band. The traditional territory of 
the Gabrielino Tongva is referred to as Tovaangar, which includes the areas currently known as 
Los Angeles County, Riverside County, West San Bernardino County, parts of Orange County as 
well as the four southern Channel Islands. Entities such as the U.S. government and non-Native 
settlers have subjected the Gabrielino Tongva peoples to historic and continuing injustices, 
including genocide, forced displacement, and cultural and linguistic erasure. Altadena Library 
commits to learning, educating, and informing its staff and residents of present-day Altadena 

1

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 

https://www.youtube.com/c/AltadenaLibrary
mailto:hello@altadenalibrary.org
http://www.altadenalibrary.org/publiccomment


about the rich histories, vibrant communities, and culture of Gabrielino Tongva people, present 
and past. 

I. Call to order

II. Open Session

a. Roll Call
b. Approval/Reordering of Agenda Items
c. Adoption of Agenda
d. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items

III. Consent Calendar

The Budget Committee hereby approves the items and recommended actions in the

Consent Calendar listed below:

a. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting held February 3, 2022 Pages 3 - 5

IV. Unfinished Business
a. None

V. New Business
a. Review and Recommendation for approval of the Board of Trustees of the new ALD

Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) Policy (Action) Pages 6- 15

b. Review and Approval of Committee’s Recommendation to Adopt the updated Salary

Schedule for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to be presented to Board of Trustees for final

approval (Action) Pages 16 - 17

c. Review and Approval of Committee’s Recommendation to Adopt the Fiscal Year

2022-2023 Budget to be presented to Board of Trustees for final approval

(Action) Pages 18 - 27

d. Review and Approval of Committee’s Recommendation to Adopt the updated ALD

Financial Policies to be presented to Board of Trustees for final approval

(Action) Pages 28 - 63

e. Review and Approval of Budget Committee Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year

2022-2023 (Action) Pages 64 - 65

f. Review of the Adopted Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget for the Local Agency
Formation Commission for the County of Los Angeles (LAFCO) (Informational)
Pages 66 - 68

VI. Announcements & Planning
a. Proposed Future Agenda Items

VII. Adjournment

2-



 

MINUTES 
Board of Library Trustees  

Budget Committee | Altadena Library District 
Virtual – Zoom – February 3, 2022 – 1:00 p.m. 

 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING FEBRUART 3, 2022 BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING 

This meeting was conducted utilizing teleconference and electronic means consistent with the 
State of California Executive Order N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, regarding the COVID-19 
pandemic and Altadena Library District Board of Trustees’ Resolution 2021-05. The live stream 
of the meeting may be viewed by visiting the Altadena Library District’s YouTube channel at the 
following URL https://www.youtube.com/c/AltadenaLibrary   
 
SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: For those wishing to make Public Comments at the 
February 3, 2022 Meeting, please submit your comments by email to be read aloud at the 
meeting. If multiple comments are submitted, only the first comment will be read aloud during the 
meeting. Email and Electronic Comments submitted online will be accepted up to two (2) hours 
prior to the start of the meeting. Email comments can be submitted to hello@altadenalibrary.org 
with the subject line: “Public Comment”. Electronic Comments may also be submitted online at 
www.altadenalibrary.org/publiccomment. If you wish to make your public comment during the live 
meeting, please state so in your email or select “Yes – I want to provide this comment in real-time 
and need the Zoom link” in the online form.  
 
Email and Electronic Comments will be submitted to the legislative body and shall become part of 
the record of the meeting.  
 
If you are unable to submit via email or the online, you can call in to (626) 798-0833 ext. 118, 
during the corresponding item of the agenda.  For public comment on any non-agenda item, 
please plan to call at 1:00 pm. 
 

PUBLIC REQUESTS FOR DOCUMENTS: The District provides a public inspection copy of all 
materials included in the agenda packet distributed to the Board members. Members of the public 
who wish to obtain a copy of any document may do so by completing a Request for Public 
Document form and submitting it to Administration who will arrange for the documents to be 
copied at a charge of 15¢ per page. Request forms are available at the District Administration 
offices. 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you need special assistance to participate 
in the meeting, please contact Library Administration at (626) 798-0833 x118 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting so the Altadena Library District may make reasonable arrangements to 
ensure accessibility to the meeting. 
 
I. Call to order  

Trustee Katie Clark called the meeting to order at 1:01 pm.  

 

II. Open Session 
 

a. Roll Call 
Trustee Clark called roll call. Trustee Wilkerson responded as present. Quorum was 
confirmed.  
 

3

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 

https://www.youtube.com/c/AltadenaLibrary
mailto:hello@altadenalibrary.org
http://www.altadenalibrary.org/publiccomment


b. Approval/Reordering of Agenda Items 
No adjustments were made.  
 

c. Adoption of Agenda 
Moved by Trustee Wilkerson to adopt the Agenda.  

Seconded by Trustee Clark. Trustee Clark opened the floor for discussion. No 

discussion followed. 

Roll Call Vote: 

Trustee Clark: Aye 

Trustee Wilkerson: Aye 

Motion passed. 
 

d. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
No public comment made.  
 

III. Consent Calendar 
Moved by Trustee Wilkerson to adopt the Consent Calendar. 
Seconded by Trustee Clark. Trustee Clark opened the floor for discussion. No 
discussion followed. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Trustee Clark: Aye 
Trustee Wilkerson: Aye 
Motion passed. 

The Budget Committee hereby approves the items and recommended actions in the 

Consent Calendar listed below:  

a. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting held November 4, 2021 
 

IV. Unfinished Business 
a. None 

 
V. New Business 

a. Review and Discussion of ALD’s Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) Policy 
Development (Action) 
Andrew Flynn from CalMuni introduced the agenda item. The committee discussion 
ensured.  
Moved by Trustee Wilkerson to recommend Board of Trustees’ to engage with 
CalMuni to work on a UAL Policy. Seconded by Trustee Clark. Trustee Clark 
opened the floor for discussion. No discussion followed. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Trustee Cervantes: Aye 
Trustee Wilkerson: Aye 
Motion passed. 
 

b. Review and Recommendation to ALD’s Fiscal Year 2021-22 Mid-Year Budget Report 
and Adjustments (Action) 
Ian Berg from Eide Bailly LLP introduced the agenda item. The committee discussion 
ensured.  
Moved by Trustee Wilkerson to recommend to Board of Trustees’ to approve 
the Mid-Year Budget Adjustments with the small adjustments discussed. 
Seconded by Trustee Clark. Trustee Clark opened the floor for discussion. No 
discussion followed. 

4-



 
Roll Call Vote: 
Trustee Cervantes: Aye 
Trustee Wilkerson: Aye 
Motion passed 
 

VI. Announcements & Planning 
a. Proposed Future Agenda Items 

 
VII. Adjournment 

Trustee Clark adjourned the meeting at 3:01 pm. 
 
 

5

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



 
 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES – BUDGET COMMITTEE 

ITEM V.A.STAFF REPORT FOR MAY 2022 

  

Report: Agenda Item V.a. MEETING DATE: May 5, 2022  

PREPARED BY: Nikki Winslow LOCATION: Virtual Meeting  

  
 

TITLE:  Review and Recommendation to approve the new ALD Unfunded Accrued Liability 
(UAL) Policy  
 

BACKGROUND 

I received an email from Weist Law and CalMuni in November 2021 asking if we would like to 
meet with them and watch a presentation about developing a UAL policy.  I reached out to our 
accountants Cindy Byerrum and Ian Berg with Eide Bailly to see if they thought we should meet 
with them and they confirmed that we should.  Ian and I met with them and watched their 
presentation on December 20, 2021 where they provided detailed information on our current 
UAL obligation and the importance of developing a plan to pay that down if possible to save 
ourselves interest on the larger amount. 

The Budget Committee were given a presentation from Andrew Flynn with CalMuni at their 
meeting on February 3, 2022 and asked many questions about how and why to develop a UAL 
policy and voted to recommend to the full Board of Trustees that we develop this policy.  The 
Board of Trustees reviewed this item at their February 28, 2022 meeting and voted to authorize 
the District Director to contract with CalMuni and draft a UAL Policy for the District. 

Ian Berg and our Office Manager Ana Villalobos met with Andrew Flynn multiple times to draft 
and edit the policy in preparation for the Budget Committee to review at their meeting on May 5, 
2022. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The District plans to evaluate budgetary performance and financial position annually to 
determine an amount of budgetary savings or surplus cash reserves for voluntary CalPERS 
Additional Discretionary Payments or contributions to a 115 Pension Trust. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Budget Committee review and recommend that the Board of 
Trustees review and approve the new ALD Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) Policy. 

6



0 

ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABILITY  POLICY 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Policy Section 1 – Overview .............................................................................................. Page 1 

Policy Section 2 – Policies ................................................................................................ Page 4 

2-1 Funding Level Objective .................................................................................. Page 4 

2-2 Establishment and Operation of a Section 115 Trust Fund .............................. Page 6 

2-3 Transparency and Reporting ........................................................................... Page 8 

2-4 Annual Budget to Contain Policy Directed Information..................................... Page 8 

2-5 Review of Policy ............................................................................................ ..Page 8 

7

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



1 

ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABILITY  POLICY 

SUBJECT: Overview 

SECTION: 1-0 

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

1-1 Purpose of the Policy

The purpose of this Unfunded Accrued Liability Pension Management Policy (the “Policy”) is to 
strategically address the existing and any future unfunded accrued liability (the “UAL”) associated 
with the Altadena Library District’s (the “District”) California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
(CalPERS) pension plans (the “Pension Plans”). This Policy also addresses some of the principal 
elements and core parameters central to the policy objectives discussed in this Policy. In the 
development of this Policy, the District strives to reduce its UAL and the associated financing costs 
in the most cost-efficient and fiscally responsible manner possible. 

The District is committed to fiscal sustainability by employing long-term financial planning efforts, 
maintaining appropriate reserve levels, and employing prudent practices in governance, 
management, budget administration, and financial reporting. This Policy is intended to make all 
relevant information readily available to decision-makers and the public to improve the quality of 
decisions, identify policy goals, and to demonstrate a commitment to long-term financial planning. 
Adherence to this Policy signals to rating agencies and capital markets that the District is well 
managed and able to meet its obligations in a timely manner. 

The Policy is intended to reflect a reasonable and conservative approach to managing the UAL 
costs associated with the Pension Plans. This Policy recognizes that the Pension Plans are 
subject to market volatility and that actual economic and demographic experience of the plans will 
differ from the actuarial assumptions. Accordingly, it is intended to allow for adaptive responses to 
changing circumstances, providing flexibility to address such volatility in a financially sound 
manner. As such, the District is required to continually monitor its Pension Plans and the 
corresponding UAL. 

1-2 Policy Goals and Objectives

• The overarching goals and objectives of this Policy are as follows:

• Establish, attain, and maintain targeted pension plan funding levels

• Provide sufficient assets to permit the payment of all benefits under the Pension Plans

• Seek to manage and control future contribution volatility to the extent reasonably possible

8

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



2 

• Strive to make Annual Discretionary Payments to accelerate UAL pay-down, reduce interest costs,
and stabilize future payments

• Maintain the District’s sound financial position and creditworthiness

• Provide guidance in making annual budget decisions

• Create sustainable and fiscally sound future budgets

• Demonstrate prudent financial management practices

• Ensure that pension funding decisions protect both current and future stakeholders

• Create transparency as to how and why the Pensions Plans are funded

1-3 Background and Discussion 

In General. Each Pension Plan is a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered 
by the California Public Employee Retirement System (“CalPERS”). All full-time and certain part-
time District employees are eligible to participate in the CalPERS retirement and disability benefits, 
annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits offered to plan members and their 
beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating 
public entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are 
established by state statute. 

The financial objective of a defined benefit pension plan is to fund the long-term cost of benefits 
provided to the plan participants. In order to assure its financial soundness and sustainability, the 
plan should accumulate adequate resources in a systematic and disciplined manner to ensure 
sufficient resources are available to meet employee benefit requirements. This Policy outlines the 
practices the District will utilize to address its actuarially determined contributions to fund the long-
term cost of benefits to the Pension Plan participants and annuitants. 

Pension Costs and Liabilities. In order to fund its employees’ pension benefits, the District is 
required to make contributions (a portion of which may come from the employees) to CalPERS. 
CalPERS then invests these contributions to generate returns to help fund the pension benefits. 
The regular required contributions, known as the “normal cost,” are calculated as a percent of 
salaries and represent the annual cost of service accrual for the upcoming fiscal year for active 
employees. If, for any reason, the actual Pension Plan experience and investment performance fall 
short of the actuarial assumptions, the Pension Plan can become underfunded (i.e., the Pension 
Plan’s Normal Accrued Liability exceeds the Plan’s market value of assets). This shortfall is known 
as the Unfunded Accrued Liability (the “UAL”) and usually has to be covered by the District 
through a series of UAL Payments, which are above and beyond the “normal cost” contributions. 
The UAL Payments are calculated in total dollar amounts, not as a percent of salaries.  

The UAL can be caused by multiple factors, including but not limited to, changes to CalPERS’ 
actuarial amortization policy, retroactive pension benefit enhancements, investment 
underperformance, actuarial assumption changes, demographic factors, and discount rate 
reductions. 

UAL is Debt. The UAL balance at any given point in time is a debt of the District owed to CalPERS 

9



3 

which is amortized over a set period of time with interest accruing at the then current CalPERS 
discount rate (the “Discount Rate”). However, this debt can be prepaid at any time without 
penalties. Recognizing the UAL as debt helps the District identify proper steps to address it and 
minimize the associated financing costs. 

Ongoing CalPERS Practices. Every year CalPERS prepares updated actuarial valuation reports 
for each of the District’s Pension Plans wherein it calculates the District’s total pension liability as 
of the end of the prior fiscal year (each a “Valuation Report”). If the investment performance during 
that fiscal year was different from the Discount Rate, or if CalPERS made any changes to its 
actuarial assumptions, or if the actual demographic or compensation experience within the 
Pension Plans was different from the actuarial assumptions, new line items, or UAL amortization 
“bases,” may be added to the plan and result in a change to the UAL balance. Such UAL 
amortization bases may be positive (indicating funding shortfall for the Pension Plans) or negative 
(indicating funding surplus for the Pension Plans). Since CalPERS can add new UAL amortization 
bases every year, the Pension Plans must be monitored annually and managed continually – there 
is no one-time solution. 

CalPERS has adopted the UAL amortization methods that were meant to help public agencies 
“ease into” paying for the UAL increases. New UAL amortization bases are implemented 
incrementally, with a five-year ramp-up period, and at times include additional small increases in 
each of the subsequent years. The ramp-up period, while reducing the cash flow impact in the 
near term, increases the overall UAL repayment costs for the District by delaying repayment. 
Since the UAL balances accrue interest at the rate that is equal to the then current Discount Rate, 
the delayed payments prior to the commencement of the amortization and the reduced payments 
during the ramp-up period that do not fully cover the interest costs result in negative amortization, 
causing further increases to the UAL balance. To help reduce the overall costs of the UAL 
repayment, this Policy encourages level annual payments (i.e., no ramp-up) whenever possible.  

10



4 

ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABILITY  POLICY 

SUBJECT: Policies 

SECTION: 2-0 

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

2-1 Funding Level Objective 

It is the District’s policy to strive to achieve and maintain a Pension “Funded Ratio” (being the ratio by which 
the Market Value of Assets—as set forth in the most recently published Valuation Report--exceeds the Entry 
Age Normal Accrued Liability or “EANAL”—as set forth in the most recently published Valuation Report) for 
each Pension Plan of 90%, Recognizing that, to achieve this objective while maintaining healthy reserves 
and provide sufficient funding for ongoing operations, thus this objective needs to be achieved over a period 
of time, the following Incremental Funding Level Targets are established. 

Incremental Funding Level Objectives 
By year 2025 –80% but not below 75% 
By year 2028 – 85% but not below 80% 
By year 2031 and beyond – 90% but not below 85% 

Achieving and maintaining the 90% Funding Level Objective ensures that the ongoing contributions of the 
District and its employees, and therefore the taxpayer funds, are properly and adequately funding the 
retirement benefits of retirees and today’s workers. This concept is commonly referred to as the 
intergenerational equity. Falling short of this funded level forces future Board of Trustees to pay the costs of 
the poor planning and execution of today’s Pension Plans. The reason for a Funding Level Objective of 90% 
rather than 100% is to allow some cushion for the possibility that good investment returns by CalPERS in a 
given year might push the Funded Ratio of a Pension Plan above 100% (commonly referred to as 
“superfunded status”), which means that the District and its employees had contributed into the Pension Plan 
more than was necessary. Thus, while the District remains committed to maintaining a 100% funded level, it 
shall manage the 10% differential (i.e., the difference between 90% and 100%) through its own investment 
process by creating the “Section 115 Trust Fund” discussed herein. 

Guidance: To achieve the Funding Level Objective, this Policy provides the following guidance: 

Pre-Pay the Entire Annual UAL Payment by July 31st of each year. On or before July 1st of each year, 
the District receives its annual CalPERS UAL invoice. The District has two payments options. The invoice 
can (1) be paid in equal monthly increments or (2) be fully pre-paid at the beginning of the fiscal year by July 
31st. By prepaying the entire invoice amount due by July 31st, the District can concurrently save 
approximately 3.3% compared to making the monthly payments. As such, every effort should be made to 
pre-pay the UAL payment upon receipt of the annual invoice. 

2. Pre-Pay UAL from Reserves, One-Time Revenues and Fund Surpluses. Reserves
(typically invested in the Los Angeles County Investment Pool) regularly do not earn returns that can offset 
the interest rate that CalPERS charges on the outstanding UAL balance. Supplemental contributions into the 
Pension Plans from available reserves, one-time revenues and fund surpluses can generate substantial long-
term net savings. Each supplemental contribution, referred to by CalPERS as an Additional Discretionary 

11

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



5 

Payment (ADP), reduces the UAL balance, the Annual Required Contributions (ARC) for future years, and 
the total interest costs associated with the UAL. CalPERS does not apply any prepayment penalties to ADPs. 
Therefore, during each budget cycle, the District staff shall review all available reserves, one-time revenues 
and fund surpluses to determine whether any such funds could be used to make an ADP to pay down the 
UAL, keeping in mind operational and capital budgetary constraints while maintaining adequate reserves and 
balancing the fiscal soundness of eliminating the high-interest UAL debt.  ADPs should not adversely affect 
the general operations and fiscal soundness of the District.  

Capital Financing. When considering capital projects, staff regularly reviews and plans for reserving capital 
to cash fund current and future projects. When considering how to pay for current and future capital projects, 
staff should review the current tax-exempt market to assess if it would be more cost effective to borrow at 
tax-exempt rates to pay for the capital projects and redirect the reserved funding (and/or such other 
appropriate funds of the District) to make ADPs to CalPERS. 

If there are projected cost savings by using this method, and a capital financing strategy is to 
be implemented, the Board of Trustees would need to approve of the ADPs being paid to CalPERS prior to 
the financing to ensure that the annal savings generated by implementing the strategy are applied to UAL 
paydowns.  

Utilize Savings Achieved from Refunding Outstanding Non-Pension Related Debt to Pre-Pay UAL. 
During each budget cycle, staff should review all outstanding long-term non-pension related debt of the 
District to determine whether a refunding of such debt might result in net present value (NPV) savings of 
greater than 3%, and if so, consider a structure and strategy that frontloads the savings from such debt 
refunding, which can then be used to pay down the UAL. This strategy should only be used if the interest 
rates on the currently outstanding debt is sufficiently below the then-current Discount Rate to ensure that 
overall NPV savings of greater than 3% are achieved by the Town. 

Sources of Revenue.  All fees, rates and charges should incorporate full allocation of pension costs for 
employees providing associated services. While some funds cannot contribute more than their fair share, 
they should not contribute less than their fair share. Staff shall review allocation of labor costs to proprietary 
and other funds to ensure full reimbursement of the pension cost burden. Staff shall provide, or cause to be 
provided, consistent and well-documented methodology for pension cost allocation to all funds.  

Pension Obligation Financing.  The District shall consider issuing taxable municipal debt obligations 
(generically hereafter referred to as “Pension Obligations”) to refinance the UAL, in part or in whole, if such 
bond obligations are expected to produce minimum cash flow savings of at least 10%, taking into account all 
debt service and costs of issuance associated with such bond obligations, in comparison to CalPERS’ 
respective UAL amortization schedule and the then-current Discount Rate.  

Pension Obligations shall not utilize swaps or derivatives of any kind and should be 
structured with reasonable and flexible call provisions (with a maximum of 10-year call provision). Pension 
Obligations shall be used only to prepay the UAL liabilities and shall not be used to finance normal cost 
payments. The issuance of Pension Obligations must be voted upon and approved by the Board of Trustees.  

Annual Review of the CalPERS Actuarial Valuation Reports and Associated Tasks. The District staff 
shall review or cause to be reviewed the annual CalPERS actuarial valuation reports within 30 days of their 
release by CalPERS, which usually takes place during the month of August. The review should focus on 
identifying the annual changes to each of the Pension Plans UAL, and quantifying the associated cost 
implications and the corresponding impact on the Funded Ratio. Staff should annually reach out to the 
District’s CalPERS actuary to request a calculation of flat payments (rather than ramp-up payments) for all 
outstanding and new UAL amortization bases. In making ADPs, the District staff shall determine or cause to 
be determined the optimal application of the ADPs to the outstanding UAL amortization bases to achieve the 
Funding Level Objective as well as desired budgetary outcomes. 

12



6 

2-2 Establishment of a Section 115 Trust Fund 

1. Establishment of a Section 115 Trust Fund.  The District shall establish a Section 115 trust fund
managed by a third-party investment manager (the “Investment Manager”). The Section 115 trust fund will
receive Sequestered Savings (defined below) and Sequestered Surplus (defined below) as well as any other
funds deposited into it at the discretion of the Board of Trustees, based on recommendations made by the
District staff during the annual budget process. Funds in the Section 115 Trust Fund should only be used to
manage the District’s pension benefits costs to maintain each of the Pension Plans at the Funding Level
Objective in accordance with the goals and objectives set forth in this Policy.

2. Funding the Section 115 Trust Fund.

(a) Sequestered Savings.  Upon the issuance of each series of Pension Obligations, for each of
the next ten (10) consecutive years (or such other period of years as deemed appropriate by the Board of 
Trustees at the time of any subsequent issuances of Pension Obligations) following such issuance, a fixed 
dollar amount equal to 50% (or such other percentage as deemed appropriate by the Board of Trustees at 
the time of any subsequent issuances of Pension Obligations) of the “Total Sequestered Savings” (as 
calculated in the manner set forth below) achieved by issuing Pension Obligat ions (the “Annual Sequestered 
Savings Savings”), shall be transferred from the Benefiting Funds (as established in section A8 above) and 
deposited into the Section 115 Trust Fund until such time that the Section 115 Trust Fund reaches the 
Section 115 Trust Fund Maximum (as outlined in section B3 below), and thereafter all Sequestered Savings 
will be directed to a “Pension Obligation Prepayment Fund” which will be established and maintained by the 
District for the purpose of prepaying any outstanding Pension Obligations. 

𝑇𝑜𝑡𝑎𝑙 𝑆𝑒𝑞𝑢𝑒𝑠𝑡𝑒𝑟𝑒𝑑 𝑆𝑎𝑣𝑖𝑛𝑔𝑠 = 𝑈𝐴𝐿𝐷𝑆 − 𝐷𝑆 

𝐴𝑛𝑛𝑢𝑎𝑙 𝑆𝑒𝑞𝑢𝑒𝑠𝑡𝑒𝑟𝑒𝑑 𝑆𝑎𝑣𝑖𝑛𝑔𝑠 = 𝑆𝑆𝑃 𝑥(
𝑈𝐴𝐿𝐷𝑆 − 𝐷𝑆

𝑌
) 

SSP = Sequestered Savings Percentage 
UALDS = Scheduled UAL debt service being paid off by the Pension Obligations 
DS = Total principal amount of Debt Service on the Pension Obligations 
Y = Number of years to pay back Sequestered Savings  

Example of Annual Sequestered Savings Calculation 

A $5M Pension Obligation was issued in 2022 for the purpose of prepaying UAL. The total UAL debt service 
(UALDS) paid off with the Pension Obligation was $8,000,000 and the total debt service (DS) on the Pension 
Obligation is $7,000,000. The District elected to sequester 50% of the total savings over a 10-year period (Y), 
which in this example results in an Annual Sequestered Savings of $50,000. 

𝐴𝑛𝑛𝑢𝑎𝑙 𝑆𝑒𝑞. 𝑆𝑎𝑣𝑖𝑛𝑔𝑠 = 0.5𝑥(
8,000,000 − 7,000,000

10
)

= $50,000 

(b) Sequestered Surplus.  Each Fiscal Year during the District’s normal budget adoption
process, if the Funding Level Objective, as defined in Section 4(a), has been achieved and the 115 Trust 

13



7 

Maximum, as defined in 4(b)3, has not been achieved, a percent between 0% and 50% of any available 
surplus from the prior Fiscal Year (the “Sequestered Surplus”) shall be set aside, transferred and deposited 
into the Pension Rate Stabilization Fund. 

3. Operation of the Section 115 Trust Fund.  Sequestered Surplus and Sequestered Savings (and
any other amounts contributed by the District) shall be deposited in the Section 115 Trust Fund and used
solely for the purpose of making ADP’s (and Normal Cost payments during a Fiscal Hardship, and/or to the
extent the amount therein exceeds the Section 115 Trust Fund Maximum, as described below) to CalPERS
for the purpose of achieving and maintaining Funding Level Objective.

With the goal of achieving and maintaining the Funding Level Objective, each year during the budget 
cycle, District staff shall calculate, or cause to be calculated, the upcoming Fiscal Year’s estimated Funded 
Ratio by taking into account the most recent Valuation Report’s statement of Funded Ratio and adjusting for 
the estimated UAL amortization base that will be either added or subtracted due to the prior Fiscal Year’s 
investment result of either exceeding or falling short of the then current Discount Rate for that Fiscal Year 
(the “Estimated Funded Ratio”). If the Estimated Funded Ratio is estimated to be less than the Funding  Level 
Objective, to the extent funds are available in the Section 115 Trust Fund, the appropriate member of staff 
shall either make, or shall direct the Investment Manger to make, an ADP to CalPERS in the amount 
necessary to bring the Funded Ratio back up to the Funding Level Objective. Additionally, if sufficient funds 
are available in the Section 115 Trust Fund, staff shall assess whether to fully amortize any new UAL 
amortization bases in order to reduce the long-term interest costs associated with the “ramping” procedures 
used by CalPERS. 

Moneys in the Section 115 Trust Fund shall not be used for normal costs until such time as the 
amount therein, when combined with the Market Value of Assets (as set forth in the most recently published 
Valuation Report) exceeds the Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability (as set forth in the most recently published 
Valuation Report) by 110% (the “Section 115 Trust Fund Maximum”). To the extent monies in the Section 
115 Trust Fund on June 31st exceed the Section 115 Trust Fund Maximum (after consideration has been 
given to the amounts therein required to be paid to CalPERS for the ensuing Fiscal Year to maintain the 
Estimated Funded Ratio at or above the Funding Level Objective), any accrued surplus over 110% may be 
used to offset the District’s Normal Cost payment made to CalPERS in such Fiscal Year, and any 
Sequestered Savings will be directed to the Bond Call Fund. 

4. Fiscal Hardship.  In the event of a Fiscal Hardship (as defined below), transfers of Sequestered
Savings may be abated and/or the Section 115 Trust Fund may be utilized for either normal or UAL costs
until the Fiscal Hardship is no longer in effect.

“Fiscal Hardship” means an economic hardship, or other unanticipated fiscal emergency, that has 
been declared by resolution of the Board of Trustees. 

2-3 Transparency and Reporting 

Funding of the Pension Plans should be transparent to all stakeholders, including plan participants,  
annuitants, the Board of Trustees, and District residents. To achieve this Policy objective, copies of the 
annual actuarial valuation reports for each Pension Plan shall be made available to the Board of Trustees 
and shall be posted on the District’s website. The District’s audited financial statements shall also be posted 
on the District’s because they include, among other things, information on the District’s current and future   
annual Pension Plan contributions as well as the funded status of each Pension Plan. 

14



8 

2-4 Annual Budget to Contain Policy Directed Information 

The District’s annual operating budget shall consider the items specified in this Policy for inclusion in each 
such annual budget. 

2-5 Review of Policy 

Funding a defined benefit pension plan requires a long-term horizon planning approach. This Policy is 
intended to provide general objectives and guidelines, which will require periodic review to consider changes 
in the City’s financial position and Pension Plan funded status over time. As such, District staff will review the 
policy for implementation of new best practices and will provide to Board of Trustees for adoption on an as 
needed basis, not to exceed 5 years. 

15--



 
 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES – BUDGET COMMITTEE 
ITEM V.B. STAFF REPORT FOR MAY 2022 

 

REPORT: Agenda Item V.b. MEETING DATE: May 5, 2022 

PREPARED BY: Nikki Winslow LOCATION: Virtual Zoom Meeting 

 

 
TITLE: Review and Approval of Committee’s Recommendation to Adopt the updated Salary 

Schedule for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to be presented to Board of Trustees for final approval  

BACKGROUND:  

The Altadena Library District provide a Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) to staff each fiscal 
year when there is enough expected revenue to accommodate this additional pay for staff.  Last 
year the District gave a 2% COLA based, as has been the typical amount given, with the 
exception of 2020, when a classification and compensation study had been completed and all 
employees were put in the salary schedule recommended by the firm conducting the study. 

According to the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, over the last 12 months, the Consumer Price 
Index for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U) rose 8.5 percent in Los Angeles area.  With this 
dramatic increase in living expenses, it was recommended by our accounting firm to build in a 
higher COLA this year to try to make up some of that difference for the ALD staff.   
 
With the projected revenue numbers, we have built in a 5% COLA increase for all staff members 
to the Proposed Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget.  This still predicts being able to cover all other 
expenses and would leave some revenue to go into our reserve funds. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

A 5% COLA increase adds $150,323 to the expenditures on Salaries and Benefits for current 
staff. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends that the Budget Committee review the Salary Schedule for Fiscal Year 2022-
23 with a 5% COLA increase and recommend that the Board of Trustees approve this updated 
schedule. 

16

FIAltadena 
~ Libraries 

https://www.bls.gov/regions/west/news-release/consumerpriceindex_losangeles.htm


Salary falls into the following range:

District Director

  Monthly 12,249.91      15,634.33     
  Annual 146,998.94   187,612.04  

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6

Assistant Library Director 50.02              52.52              55.15              57.90              60.79              63.83             

  Monthly 8,669.60        9,103.08        9,558.23        10,036.14      10,537.95      11,064.85     

  Annual 104,035.14   109,236.90   114,698.75   120,433.68   126,455.38   132,778.14  

IT & Technical Services Manager  48.79              51.24              53.81              56.49              59.31              62.28             

  Monthly 8,458.14        8,881.05        9,325.10        9,791.35        10,280.93      10,794.97     

  Annual 101,497.70   106,572.59   111,901.22   117,496.28   123,371.09   129,539.65  

Administrative Services Manager/

Facilities Manager/Library Manager

Marketing & Community Engagement Manager 39.07              41.02              43.09              45.23              47.49              49.87             

  Monthly 6,772.68        7,111.30        7,466.88        7,840.21        8,232.23        8,643.84       

  Annual 81,272.09      85,335.69      89,602.49      94,082.60      98,786.73      103,726.07  

Librarian / Marketing Specialist 33.69              35.38              37.15              39.01              40.95              42.99             

  Monthly 5,840.06        6,132.06        6,438.66        6,760.60        7,098.62        7,453.55       

  Annual 70,080.66      73,584.71      77,263.93      81,127.14      85,183.49      89,442.66     

Administrative Assistant 28.34              29.76              31.24              32.82              34.45              36.17             

  Monthly 4,913.03        5,158.70        5,416.62        5,687.45        5,971.82        6,270.43       

  Annual 58,956.43      61,904.25      64,999.46      68,249.44      71,661.91      75,245.00     

Facilties Maintenance Worker/

Library Assistant 25.05              26.31              27.61              29.00              30.45              31.97             

  Monthly 4,342.41        4,559.53        4,787.51        5,026.87        5,278.23        5,542.13       

  Annual 52,108.90      54,714.33      57,450.05      60,322.56      63,338.69      66,505.62     

Library Technician 22.70              23.84              25.02              26.26              27.56              28.94             

  Monthly 3,934.00        4,130.71        4,337.25        4,554.10        4,781.82        5,020.91       

  Annual 50,358.08      49,568.49      52,046.92      54,649.27      57,381.73      60,250.80     

Facilities Monitor / Library Clerk 20.56              21.59              22.67              23.80              24.99              26.24             

  Monthly 3,564.02        3,742.22        3,929.33        4,125.79        4,332.08        4,548.69       

  Annual 42,768.20      44,906.61      47,151.94      49,509.54      51,985.01      54,584.26     

Library Aide 16.07              16.86              17.71              18.60              19.52              20.49             

  Monthly 2,784.20        2,923.41        3,069.58        3,223.06        3,384.21        3,553.43       

  Annual 33,410.44      35,080.98      36,835.01      38,676.78      40,610.60      42,641.14     

Altadena Library District Salary Schedule FY22-23
Proposed 5% COLA

Effective July 1, 2022

17

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



 
 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES – BUDGET COMMITTEE 
Agenda ITEM V.C. REPORT for MAY 2022 

  

REPORT: Agenda Item V.c.  MEETING DATE: May 5, 2022  

PREPARED BY: Ana Villalobos  LOCATION: Virtual Meeting  

  
 

TITLE: Review and Approval of Committee’s Recommendation to Adopt the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 Budget to be presented to Board of Trustees for final approval 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In consultation with Ian Berg and Kristi Even of Eide Bailly, Director Nikki Winslow and I have 
drafted the District’s fiscal year 2022-2023 budget for the committee’s review. This budget 
includes requests from all District department heads for programming and other operational 
needs. This budget includes a breakdown of staffing allocations and costs, a breakout of 
revenues and expenses by funding type: 

• General Funds 

• Donations & Grants 

• Capital Projects 

• Community Facilities District (CFD) Bond Issuance 
 
 
 
 
The following pages present a summary of each funding type by line item. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



 
1. General Fund  

a. Funds allocated from Los Angeles and earned via library operations 
 

Account Line 
Number 

Notation 

Property Tax & Assessments 2 2% increase in funding over projected year 
end 

Fines and Fees 3 Projecting a similar performance to current 
year (the vast majority of these revenues are 
related to our passport services. 

Interest Income 4 Mirrors 2% increase over projected year end 
as it relates to the County of Los Angeles  

Other Revenues 5 Primarily sourced from our E-Rate 

  Total 1% increase in projected revenues 

Salaries  12 This 7% increase accounts for a 5% 
proposed COLA increase for staff, an annual 
wellness incentive of $400 to all staff, and 
the addition of 2 Library Clerks 

Benefits, Retirement, and 
Taxes 

24 We see an 8% increase attributed to the 
increase in payroll taxes and UAL payment 

Operating Expenses 36 We see an increase primarily related to the 
Trustee Election and increase toward Staff 
Development. The decrease in Line 29 is 
related to the Xerox printer purchase over 
leasing. We see some cost savings in this 
area (Estimated 2,200 monthly). We also 
see a new line related to the maintenance of 
our Mobile Library as these costs relate to 
the one time 15,700 set up fee to the new 
van and $4,300 in maintenance expenses 
(oil changes, gas, etc) 

Professional Services 41 Line 38 is decreasing with bringing the 
financial function in-house versus 
outsourcing to Eide Bailly. Eide Bailly will 
transition to advisory and oversight role 
versus a financial operations role. 

Information & Technology  48 This figure is comparable to current year 
utilization. We see line 44, Technology 
Equipment reduced as we purchased 
laptops this fiscal year and are not projecting 
a need to upgrade. We see an increase in 
Line 45 Technology Maintenance Fees 
related to the maintenance for our new 
Xerox printers. 

Library Materials 58 We approximate similar costs to last year. 

Programs 67 We see a small decrease in this figure as we 
allocate these costs from donations and 
grants versus general funds. 

19



Use of/Addition to Reserves  We see we are positioned to increase our 
reserves by $10k. 

 
 

2. Donations & Grants  
a. Funds received via confirmed donations and grants awarded (not inclusive of 

grants applied for). 
 

Account Line 
Number 

Notation 

Altadena Library Foundation 3 An increased donation amount due to 
increasing community outreach as we 
approach renovations. We added an All Ages 
program to target the community as a whole in 
these efforts. 

Friends of the Library 4 An increased donation amount as COVID 
restrictions impact the community less and the 
book sale activity they’re anticipating to profit 
on. 

CA Library Literacy Services 5 An increased amount as communicated to us 
formally from the California Library 

Emergency Connectivity Fund 6 A decreased amount is reflected as the 2021-
2022 fiscal year received funds for the laptop 
purchases made. We only anticipate funding 
for the 5G hotspots and related services. 

CA Library Expanding Our 
Footprint 

7 These funds were awarded in the 2021-2022 
fiscal year. However, we are carrying these 
funds over into the 2022-2023 fiscal year as the 
majority of the purchases have not yet been 
spent. This includes: 

• Vending machines (and its related 
costs) 

• State Footprints Website Development. 

Wages 13 These are the associated labor for the Literacy 
Program 

Operating Expenses 18 CA Library Expanding Our Footprint: 

• Vending Machine & Maintenance 
Friends of the Library: 

• Staff Recognition 

Programs 28 We see an overall increase in $10,000 in 
expenses compared to 2021-2022. This is 
related to the Adult Services and the All Ages 
program. These costs are split between the 
Friends of the Library and Altadena Library 
Foundation. 

Information Technology 38 These costs are covered between the CA 
Expanding Our Footprint and Emergency Con 

 
 
 

20



3. Capital Projects Fund 
a. This includes the carryover of funds, the proposed interest earned from bond 

proceeds received in 2021-2022 fiscal year, and use of funds toward renovation 

Account Line 
Number 

Notation 

CFD Measure Z Bond 
Proceeds 

2 These funds were received in full in the 2021-
2022 fiscal year 

Interest Income 3 This is the projected interest earned increased 
as it will earn interest for one year versus one 
quarter as compared to this fiscal year. 

CFD Bond 13 This is comparable to prior year; and related to 
the administrative / professional support related 
to compliance and fund use. The contingencies 
line reflects the line 6 through 10 expenses that 
have been approximated to date cumulatively 
versus by line (these are variable costs). 

Capital Project Expenses 17 The Bob Lucas Branch will begin renovations 
January 2023 and the primary focus will be its 
construction costs and design. The Main 
Library costs are primarily related to permits 
and design before renovations begin. 

Capital Reserves 25 The drawdown on the proceeds is forecasted at 
$3.735 million. Because funds we raised in full, 
we’re anticipating to only see drawdowns in 
activity through project completion. Remainder 
will be $17,803,300. 

 
4. CFD Fund 

a. 2020-1 Special Assessment funds related to the property tax lien to equip and 
maintain the Altadena Library within the boundaries of the Library District. 

Account Line Number Notation 

CFD 2020-1 Special 
Assessment 

2 Revenue related to the 
property tax lien to be 
recognized in the 2022-2023 
fiscal year. 

Debt Service Interest 6 This is the bond interest 
expense attributable to the 
current fiscal year at a 5% 
rate. 

 
 
We project to increase reserves in our general fund and accounting for the necessary expenses 
for the upcoming year. We plan to fully utilize donation and grant funds for programs and 
necessary technology upgrades. Additionally, we’re beginning to pick up renovation spending 
activity on both locations (phases of execution on Bob Lucas and planning the Main Library 
front). Lastly, we are carrying over funds from the Special Assessment to retain our library within 
the Library District boundaries. We feel strongly positioned in the next fiscal year with these 
projections. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

21



 
The general funds are projected see an increase in reserves of $10,050 at the end of the 2022-
2023 fiscal year with the proposed budget. Donations and Grants funding of $289,400 have a 
fiscal impact of net $0 as we intend to use these funds for their targeted use. Our capital budget 
sees a use of $3,735,400 – leaving approximately $17,803,300 in bond funds. Lastly, we have a 
$0 fiscal impact of CFD funds as they align with the debt service interest expense for the 2022-
2023 fiscal year. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the Budget Committee approve the Committee’s recommendation to 
Adopt the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget to be presented to Board of Trustees for final 
approval. 

 

22--



Altadena Library District
FY 2022/23 Proposed Budget

General Fund

A B C

 FY 2021/22 
Projected
Actuals 

 FY 2021/22 
Adopted 
Budget 

 FY 2022/23 
Proposed 

Budget 

1 REVENUES
2 Property Taxes & Assessments 3,894,800$        3,788,800$        3,955,000$        
3 Fines & Fees 52,600               54,000               52,500               
4 Interest Income 5,000                 4,400                 5,100                 
5 Other Revenues 60,700               57,000               59,000               

6 TOTAL REVENUE 4,013,100          3,904,200          4,071,600          

7 EXPENSE
8 Salaries & Benefits
9 Wages
10 Salaried 1,045,000          1,045,000          1,278,100          
11 Hourly 975,000             975,000             876,800             
12 Total Wages 2,020,000          2,020,000          2,154,900          

13 Benefits, Retirement & Taxes
14 Health Insurance - Employee 135,100             155,000             154,000             
15 Health Insurance - Retiree 63,500               77,000               66,700               
16 Dental Insurance 14,800               14,500               15,000               
17 Vision Insurance 5,100                 5,500                 5,500                 
18 Life Insurance 1,500                 1,500                 1,500                 
19 Workers' Compensation 42,400               42,400               43,200               
20 CalPERS Retirement (Normal Costs) 142,000             142,000             150,700             
21 CalPERS UAL Minimum Payment 197,800             197,900             226,000             
22 Payroll Taxes (District-Paid) 160,000             160,000             170,000             
23 Total Benefits, Retirement & Taxes 762,200             795,800             832,600             

24 Total Salaries & Benefits 2,782,200          2,815,800          2,987,500          

25 Operating Expenses
26 Insurance (Liability, Earthquake) 96,600               96,550               98,500               
27 Utilities 68,000               68,000               68,000               
28 County Tax Collection Fees 41,500               40,200               42,400               
29 Other Operating 79,900               84,600               53,700               
30 Facilities, Grounds & Maintenance 100,000             98,500               110,000             
31 Structures & Improvements 10,000               10,000               10,000               
32 Vehicles & Equipment Maintenance -                     -                     20,000               
33 Staff Development, Training & Travel 14,600               19,100               20,500               
34 Advertising & Marketing 5,400                 11,000               9,600                 
35 Miscellaneous Expenses 3,000                 2,600                 2,600                 
36 Trustee Election -                     -                     75,000               
37 Total Operating Expenses 419,000             430,550             510,300             

38 Professional Services
39 Audit and Financial Consulting 125,800             90,000               60,000               
40 Legal Fees 12,900               20,000               15,000               

23

EIAltadena 
~ Libraries 



Altadena Library District
FY 2022/23 Proposed Budget

General Fund

A B C

 FY 2021/22 
Projected
Actuals 

 FY 2021/22 
Adopted 
Budget 

 FY 2022/23 
Proposed 

Budget 

41 Consultants - Other 40,300               56,000               45,000               
42 Total Professional Services 179,000             166,000             120,000             

43 Information Technology (IT)
44 Internet Service / E-Rate 58,300               58,000               58,000               
45 Technology Equipment 38,700               25,000               20,000               
46 Technology Maintenance Fees 19,200               25,000               33,000               
47 Technology Consulting -                     -                     1,800                 
48 Telecommunications 8,500                 9,500                 8,500                 
49 Total Information Technology (IT) 124,700             117,500             121,300             

50 Library Materials
51 Books 141,800             141,800             139,300             
52 Downloadables 69,300               69,300               69,300               
53 DVD's & Videogames 12,600               12,600               12,600               
54 Electronic Databases / Subscriptions 26,800               26,500               29,000               
55 Periodicals 13,100               12,000               12,000               
56 Audio CD 9,100                 9,100                 9,100                 
57 Purchase Suggestions 11,200               11,200               11,200               
58 Library of Things 6,000                 6,000                 6,000                 
59 Total Library Materials 289,900             288,500             288,500             

60 Programs
61 Adult Services 15,000               15,000               12,000               
62 Youth Services 10,000               11,000               10,000               
63 Teen Services 5,800                 6,000                 5,500                 
64 Bob Lucas Branch Services 5,500                 5,700                 5,500                 
65 Literacy Services -                     -                     750                    
66 Volunteer Services 200                    500                    200                    
67 Total Programs 36,500               38,200               33,950               

68 TOTAL EXPENSE 3,831,300          3,856,550          4,061,550          

69 NET REVENUE / (EXPENSE) 181,800             47,650               10,050               

70 Use Of / (Addition To) Reserves (181,800)            (47,650)              (10,050)              

71 NET BALANCE -                     -                     -                     

72 Projected General Fund Reserves
73 Beginning Reserves 7/1 3,764,800          3,764,800          3,946,600          
74 Use Of / (Addition To) Reserves 181,800             47,650               10,050               
75 General Fund Reserves 6/30 3,946,600          3,812,450          3,956,650          

24

~ Altadena 
~ Libraries 



Altadena Library District
FY 2022/23 Proposed Budget

Donations & Grants

A B C

 FY 2021/22 
Projected
Actuals 

 FY 2021/22 
Adopted 
Budget 

 FY 2022/23 
Proposed 

Budget 

1 REVENUES
2 Donations & Grants
3 Altadena Library Foundation 30,000$             34,000$             35,000$             
4 Friends of the Library 15,000               15,000               22,000               
5 CA Library Literacy Services 21,600               20,000               24,400               
6 Emergency Connectivity Fund 25,700               25,800               8,000                 
7 CA Library Expanding our Footprint 50,000               250,000             200,000             
8 Total Donations & Grants 142,300             344,800             289,400             

9 TOTAL REVENUE 142,300             344,800             289,400             

10 EXPENSES
11 Wages
12 Salaried 15,000               15,000               20,400               
13 Total Wages 15,000               15,000               20,400               

14 Operating Expenses
15 Staff Recognition 5,000                 5,000                 4,500                 
16 Vehicles & Equipment 50,000               212,500             162,500             
17 Facilities, Grounds & Maintenance -                     15,000               15,000               
18 Total Operating Expenses 55,000               232,500             182,000             

19 Programs
20 Adult Services 10,000               10,000               18,000               
21 Mobile Library 9,588                 12,000               10,000               
22 Summer Reading 15,000               15,000               13,000               
23 Youth Services 4,000                 4,000                 1,000                 
24 Teen Services -                     -                     500                    
25 Bob Lucas Branch Services -                     -                     500                    
26 Literacy Services 5,000                 5,000                 4,500                 
27 All Ages -                     -                     6,000                 
28 Total Programs 43,588               46,000               53,500               

29 Library Materials
30 Mobile Library Collection 3,000                 3,000                 3,000                 
31 Total Library Materials 3,000                 3,000                 3,000                 

32 Information Technology (IT)
33 Internet Service / E-Rate -                     2,500                 2,500                 
34 Technology Consulting 1,800                 1,800                 -                     
35 Technology Equipment 19,628               19,600               6,000                 
36 Technology Maintenance Fees 4,284                 4,400                 2,000                 
37 Website Development -                     20,000               20,000               
38 Total Information Technology (IT) 25,712               48,300               30,500               

39 TOTAL EXPENSES 142,300             344,800             289,400             

40 NET REVENUES / (EXPENSES) -                     -                     -                     

25

~ Altadena 
~ Libraries 



Altadena Library District
FY 2022/23 Proposed Budget

Capital

A B C

 FY 2021/22 
Projected
Actuals 

 FY 2021/22 
Adopted 
Budget 

 FY 2022/23 
Proposed 

Budget 

1 REVENUES
2 CFD Measure Z Bond Proceeds 22,939,300        -                     -                     
3 Interest Income 28,600               -                     110,000             

4 TOTAL REVENUE 22,967,900        -                     110,000             

5 EXPENSE
6 CFD Bond
6 Audit and Financial Consulting 15,000               15,000               -                     
7 CFD Bond Issuance Consulting 102,000             102,000             -                     
9 CFD Administration 15,000               15,000               -                     
10 CFD Banking Fees 7,000                 7,000                 -                     
11 CFD Project Management 215,900             196,000             199,000             
12 Contingencies 146,400             
13 Total CFD Bond 354,900             335,000             345,400             

14 Capital Project Expenses
15 Bob Lucas Memorial Library 103,000             -                     2,500,000          
16 Main Library 271,000             -                     1,000,000          

17 Total Capital Project Expenses 374,000             -                     3,500,000          

18 TOTAL EXPENSE 728,900             335,000             3,845,400          

19 NET REVENUE / (EXPENSE) 22,239,000        (335,000)            (3,735,400)         

20 Use Of / (Addition To) Reserves (22,239,000)       335,000             3,735,400          

21 NET BALANCE -                     -                     -                     

22 Projected Capital Reserves

23 Beginning Reserves 7/1 22,239,000        -                     21,538,700        

24 Drawdown of Proceeds (700,300)            (335,000)            (3,735,400)         
25 Capital Reserves 6/30 21,538,700        (335,000)            17,803,300        

26

~ A;ltad~na 
~ L1brar1es 



Altadena Library District
FY 2022/23 Proposed Budget

CFD

A B C

 FY2021/22 
Projected 
Actuals 

 FY 2021/22 
Adopted 
Budget 

 FY 2022/23 
Proposed 

Budget 

1 REVENUE
2 CFD 2020-1 Special Assessment -                     -                     878,500             
3 TOTAL REVENUE -                     -                     878,500             

4 EXPENSE
5 Debt Service Principal -                     -                     -                     
6 Debt Service Interest -                     -                     878,500             
7 TOTAL EXPENSE -                     -                     878,500             

8 NET REVENUE / (EXPENSE) -                     -                     -                     
9 Use Of / (Addition To) Reserves -                     -                     -                     

10 NET BALANCE -                     -                     -                     

11 Projected CFD Reserves
12 Beginning Reserves 7/1 -                     -                     -                     
13 Addition / (Drawdown) of Reserves -                     -                     -                     
14 CFD Reserves 6/30 -                     -                     -                     

27

~ Altadena 
~ Libraries 



 
 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES – BUDGET COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM V.D. REPORT FOR MAY 2022 

 

DEPARTMENT: Agenda Item V.d. MEETING DATE: May 5, 2022 

PREPARED BY: Nikki Winslow LOCATION: Virtual Zoom Meeting 

 

 
TITLE: Review and Approval of Committee’s Recommendation to Adopt the updated ALD 
Financial Policies to be presented to Board of Trustees for final approval  

BACKGROUND:  

The current ALD Financial Policies were last approved July 27, 2009.  We have intended to 
update or create new Financial Policies since I joined the District in 2019 and set it as a goal to 
have these completed by the end of 2022. 

I reached out to Eide Bailly, our accounting firm, in January 2022 to get advice on the best way 
to update these policies.  They have a member of their team, Kristi Even, that has drafted many 
financial policies and was referred to her to get started.  We shared our current policies with her 
as a place to start, but quickly realized that she would have to heavily edit these and decided to 
use the Subject Headings of the older policies and draft the new policies based on current and 
best practices.  These older policies may be viewed on the ALD website at this link. 

The procedural elements have been removed from the manual because they change more 
frequently and require flexibility. Including only financial policies in the manual allows for more 
effective management and review. The procedural elements that were removed include: fund 
definitions, categories, and classifications, Board calendar, chart of accounts, reports and 
schedules, funding sources, record retention schedule, and general procedures such as bank 
and account reconciliations.  Some policies work together and have appropriately been 
combined (ie Fixed Assets and Capitalization). A Record Retention policy was approved for all 
District records so the schedule was removed from the manual. This will ensure consistency 
and eliminate the need to update both. 

Recently approved policies have been added to the manual. These include: 

• Investment Policy (last approved on November 25, 2019) 

• Debt Policy (last approved August 23, 2021) 

• Disclosure Policy (last approved August 23, 2021) 

• Tax Policy (last approved August 23, 2021) 

We met several times to review the drafted policies to confirm that they include everything we 
need in our financial policies moving forward.  This included review and feedback from our 
accountant Ian Berg and Office Manager Ana Villalobos. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

28

FIAltadena 
~ Libraries 

https://www.altadenalibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/Financial-Policies-and-Procedures-Manual-July-27-2009.pdf


None. 

RECOMMENDATION  

Staff recommends that the Budget Committee review the new ALD Financial Policies and 
recommend approval of them to the Board of Trustees. 

29--



ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | BUDGET POLICY MANUAL 
SUBJECT: Budget Policy 

SECTION: Table of Contents 

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

Budget Policy  

 

 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Policy Section I – Budget .................................................................................................. Page 1 

Policy Section II – Reserve ............................................................................................... Page 3 

Policy Section III – Audit ................................................................................................... Page 4 

Policy Section IV – Investment .......................................................................................... Page 6 

Policy Section V  Contracts & Agreements ........................................................................ Page 11 

Policy Section VI – Purchasing ......................................................................................... Page 13 

Policy Section VII – Capital Asset ..................................................................................... Page 15 

Policy Section VIII – Debt .................................................................................................. Page 19 

Policy Section IX – Disclosure ........................................................................................... Page 23 

Policy Section X – Tax ...................................................................................................... Page 30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

30

.. Altadena 
~ Libraries 



 
ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | FINANCIAL POLICY MANUAL  

SUBJECT: Budget Policy  

SECTION: 1-0  

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

 

1-1 Purpose of the Policy 

In keeping with its mission of providing opportunities for lifelong learning, the Altadena Library 
District (hereinafter referred to as the Library) offers public access to computers, laptops, and 
Internet free of charge under the following policy and guidelines.  
 

1-2 Budget Policy 

The District’s strategic plan shall serve as a guide in the development of the Annual 
Operating Budget. The Board is responsible for adoption of the Budget on or before 
September 1st each year in compliance with Division I, Part 11, Chapter 9, Section 
19655, of the California Education Code. By practice, the District adopts the annual 
budget before June 30th in time for the upcoming fiscal year.  

 

The Director and the Board may consider requests for budget modifications through the 
mid-year budget review process. Additional requests for budget modifications 
necessitated by changes in circumstances unforeseen at the time of the original budget 
and/or the mid-year review, shall be submitted to the Director for consideration.  

 

Department heads are expected to maintain control of expenditures to properly administer 
their programs. The Director may approve budget modifications of less than $10,000. 
Board approval is required for budget modifications of $10,000 or greater.  

  

1-3 Authority. 

 

The Director is responsible for adherence to this policy and regular reporting of the 
District’s financial status. The Board provides oversight through reporting of Budget to 
Actual Expenditures during regular Board meetings. 

 

1-4  Policy Review. 

 

31

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



The Budget Policy shall be reviewed annually as part of the Budget adoption process. 
Any modifications shall be presented to and approved by the Board of Trustees. 

 

32--



 

ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | FINANCIAL POLICY MANUAL  

SUBJECT: Reserve Policy  

SECTION: 2-0  

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

 

 

2-1  Purpose of the Policy 

The Reserve policy establishes guidelines for the Altadena Library District to maintain 

appropriate reserve levels as required by legal or external requirements, to provide the 

necessary cash flow for normal operations and the ability to address unplanned events or 

emergencies.    

 

2-2  Reserve Policy. 

The District shall maintain an Operating reserve fund equal to six months of budgeted 

operating expenditures, as required by California Government Code Section 

53646(B)(3). 

  

2-3 Authority. 

 

The Director is responsible for overseeing the maintenance and reporting of the District’s 

Reserve balance. The Director shall identify and report to the board plans to replenish 

the reserve fund, should it fall below the required level. The Board provides oversight 

through monthly reporting. 

 

2-4  Policy Review. 

 

The Reserve Policy shall be reviewed annually as part of the budget adoption process. 

Any modifications shall be presented to and approved by the Board of Trustees. 

 

33

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



 
ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | FINANCIAL POLICY MANUAL  

SUBJECT: Audit Policy  

SECTION: 3-0  

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

 

3-1  Purpose of the Policy.  

  

The Altadena Library District recognizes the need to maintain its overall integrity, financial 
credibility, and long-term viability. An external audit provides transparency and demonstrates 
responsible financial management, accurate financial statement presentation and compliance 
with laws and regulations.   

  

3-2 Policy.  

  

The Board requires an annual audit of District funds and financial records be performed 
by an independent public accounting firm, licensed by the California State Board of 
Accountancy. The board shall be responsible for engaging the auditor and receiving 
directly, the independent auditors’ report.   

  

A formal request for proposal process shall be conducted at least once every five years. 
The selected auditing firm’s contract shall be for a period not to exceed three years with 
an option to extend for up to two additional years, for a total period not to exceed five 
years.   

  

3-3 Authority.  

  

The Director is responsible for establishing operating objectives and goals, implementing 
control procedures, and accomplishing desired operating results. The Director works 
with the auditors to complete the annual audit. The Board provides oversight by 
reviewing and approving monthly financial reports and the annual audit report.    

  

3-4 Policy Review.  

  

34

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



The Audit Policy shall be reviewed at least every five years. Any modifications shall be 
presented to and approved by the Board of Trustees.  

 

35--



 
ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | FINANCIAL POLICY MANUAL  

SUBJECT: Investment Policy  

SECTION: 4-0  

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

 

4-1 Purpose of the Policy.  

  

The Investment Policy applies guidance to all financial assets of the Altadena Library District. 
Funds in any deferred compensation plan and/or in a trust for retiree benefits are not included.  

  

4-2 Policy.   

  

The Legislature of the State of California has declared that the deposit and investment of 
public funds by local officials and local agencies is an issue of statewide concern 
(California Government Code Section 53600.6).  

  

The legislative body of a local agency may invest surplus monies not required for the 
immediate necessities of the local agency in accordance with the provisions of California 
Government Code Sections 5920 and 53600 et. seq.   

  

The Director shall annually prepare and submit a statement of investment policy and 
such policy, and any changes, shall be considered by the legislative body (Board) at a 
public meeting (California government Code Section 53646(a)).  

  

4-3 Prudence.  

  

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then 
prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and anticipated 
needs of the District, which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in 
the management of their own affairs; not for speculation, but for investment, considering 
the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.  

  

36

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent 
investor" standard (California Government Code Section 53600.3) and shall be applied 
in the context of managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance 
with written procedures and the Policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of 
personal responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, 
provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate 
action is taken to control adverse developments.  

  

4-4 Objectives.  

  

As specified in California Government Code Section 53600.5, when investing, 
reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, and managing public funds, the 
primary objectives, in priority order, of the investment activities shall be:  

  

A. Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the Policy. Investments of 
the District shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the 
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. To attain this objective, 
diversification is required in order that potential losses on individual securities do 
not exceed the income generated from the remainder of the portfolio.  

  

B. Liquidity: The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to enable the 
District to meet all operating requirements that might be reasonably anticipated.  

  

C. Return on Investments: The investment portfolio shall be designed with the 
objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic 
cycles, considering the investment risk constraints and the cash flow 
characteristics of the portfolio.  

  

4-5 Delegation of Authority.  

  

Authority to manage the Policy is derived from California Government Code Section 
53600, et. seq. Management responsibility for the Policy is delegated to the Director. No 
person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of 
this Policy. The Board shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall 
establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of the Director or any other 
subordinate officials. Under the provisions of California Government Code Section 
53600.3, the Director is a trustee and a fiduciary subject to the prudent investor 
standard.  

37--



  

 

4-6 Ethics and Conflict of Interest.  

  

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall fully comply with the 
District’s Conflict of Interest Code in the execution of this policy. Officers and employees 
involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that 
could conflict or appear to conflict with the proper execution of the investment program, 
or which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions.  

  

4-7 Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers.  

  

The Director may maintain a list of financial institutions, selected on the basis of credit 
worthiness financial strength, experience and minimal capitalization authorized to 
provide investment services. In addition, a list may also be maintained of approved 
security brokers/dealers selected by credit worthiness who are authorized to provide 
investment and financial advisory services in the State of California. No public deposit 
shall be made except in a qualified public depository as established by state laws.  

  

For brokers/dealers of government securities and other investments, the Director shall 
select only brokers/dealers who are licensed and in good standing with the California 
Department of Securities, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the National 
Association of Securities Dealers, or other applicable self-regulatory organizations.  

  

Before engaging in investment transactions with a broker/dealer, the Director shall have 
received from said firm a signed certification form. This form shall attest that the 
individual responsible for the District’s account with that firm has reviewed the District’s 
Policy and that the firm understands the policy and intends to present investment 
recommendations and transactions to the District that are appropriate under the terms 
and conditions of the Policy.  

  

Where all funds of the District not placed in FDIC-insured accounts are invested through 
the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), the District need not 
investigate the qualifications of those financial institutions and broker/dealers with whom 
LAIF transacts business.  

  

  

38--



 

  

4-8 Authorized and Suitable Investments.  

  

A. Permitted Investments: District funds may be invested as authorized by, and 
subject to the limitations and special conditions of California Government Code 
Section 53601 et. seq.  

  

B. Prohibited Investments: Under the provisions of California Government Code 
Section 53601.6, the District shall not invest any funds covered by this Policy in 
inverse floaters, range notes, interest-only strips derived from mortgage pools or 
any investment that may result in a zero-interest accrual  if held to maturity.  

  

4-9 Collateralization.  

 

All certificates of deposits must be collateralized by U. S. Treasury obligations.  
Collateral must be held by a third-party trustee and valued monthly.  The percentage of 
collateralization on repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements shall adhere to the 
amount required under California Government Code Section 53601(i)(2).  

  

4-10 Safekeeping and Custody.  

  

All security transactions entered by the District shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-
payment (DVP) basis. All securities purchased or acquired shall be delivered to the 
District by book entry, physical delivery or by third party custodial agreement as required 
by California Government Code Section 53601.  

  

4-11 Diversification.  

  

The District shall diversify its investments by security type and institution. It is the policy of 
the District to diversify its investment portfolio. Assets shall be diversified to eliminate the 
risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific 
issuer, or a specific class of securities. Diversification strategies shall be determined and 
revised periodically. In establishing specific diversification strategies, the following general 
policies and constraints shall apply  

  

39--



A. Portfolio maturities shall be matched versus liabilities to avoid undue concentration in 
a specific maturity sector.  

  

B. Maturities selected shall provide for stability of income and liquidity.  

  

C. Disbursement and payroll dates shall be covered through maturities investments, 
marketable U.S. Treasury Bills, or other cash equivalent instruments such as money 
market mutual funds  

  

4-12  Reporting.  

  

In accordance with California Government Code Section 53646(b) (1), the Director shall 
submit to each member of the Board a quarterly investment report. The report shall 
include a complete description of the portfolio, the type of investments, the issuers, 
maturity dates, par values on current market values of each component of the portfolio, 
including funds managed for the District by third party contracted managers, if 
applicable. The report shall also include a certification that (1) all investment actions 
executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the Policy and, (2) 
the District shall meet its expenditure obligations for the next six months as required by 
California Government Code Sections 53646(b)(2) and (3), respectively. The Director 
shall maintain a complete and timely record of all investment transactions.  

  

4-13 Policy Review.  

  

The Investment Policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis. Any modifications shall be 
presented to and approved by the Board of Trustees.  

 

40--



 

ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | FINANCIAL POLICY MANUAL  

SUBJECT: Contracts and Agreements Policy  

SECTION: 5-0  

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

 

5-1 Purpose of the Policy.  

  

The Contracts and Agreements Policy provides guidance for the Altadena Library District to 

enter into legally binding agreements that define and govern the rights and responsibilities 

between two or more parties.   

  

5-2 Policy.  

  

The Director is authorized to enter into contracts or agreements for less than $10,000 for 

any item in the current fiscal year Operating Budget.   

  

The Board must approve all contracts and agreements for $10,000 or greater.   

  

All contracts and agreements must be reviewed and approved by general counsel.  

  

5-3 Services Contracts and Professional Service Agreements.  

  

For service contracts and professional service agreements, the Director shall prepare, 

issue, and evaluate appropriate requests for proposals no less than every five years, 

unless otherwise directed by the Board. The objective is to re-assess the price, utility, 

and service received to ensure the District is receiving quality service at a competitive 

price. The results of such review shall be reported to the Board for contracts and 

agreements of $10,000 or greater.   

 

5-4 Personnel Contracts.  

  

41

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



A. The Board is responsible for selecting and contracting with a Director, 

establishing the salary, benefits and terms of employment, and completing an 

annual review. The Director’s termination shall be tendered to or directed by the 

Board. 

  

B. The Board is responsible for reviewing and determining employee wages, 

benefits, terms of employment and working conditions. Please see the Altadena 

Library District Personnel Policies and Rules.  

  

5-5  Authority.  

  

The Director is responsible for administering contracts and agreements.    

  

5-6  Policy Review.  

  

The Contracts and Agreements Policy shall be reviewed at least every five years. Any 

modifications shall be presented to and approved by the Board of Trustees.  

 

42--



 
ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | FINANCIAL POLICY MANUAL  

SUBJECT: Purchasing Policy  

SECTION: 6-0  

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

 

6-1 Purpose of the Policy.  

  

The Purchasing Policy provides The Altadena Library District with guidance in purchasing 
quality products and services. The District strives to purchase from the lowest responsible 
bidder. However, cost shall not be the sole factor in selecting vendors to provide products and 
services necessary for operations. Value, future costs, and quality of service shall be given 
equal weight.  

  

6-2 Policy.  

  

Purchases are made by employing a Bid process or a Request for Proposal (RFP) 
process. A Bid process implies that the lowest price shall be the sole criteria in the 
award selection if the minimum state requirements are met. The RFP process allows for 
selection based on stipulated award criteria in addition to price.  

  

If products or services are deemed available only from a sole source, the Director may 
waive the requirements set forth in Section 6.3 Purchase Limitations.  

  

6-3 Purchase Limitations.  

  

A. A budgeted purchase of $5,000 or less for any one item may be accomplished by 
negotiated agreement between the Director and one or more vendors.  

  

B. A budgeted purchase of greater than $5,000 and less than $10,000 shall be 
awarded to the successful vendor after obtaining informal quotes from at least 
three independent vendors.   

  

43

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



C. A budgeted purchase of $10,000 or greater shall be made after successful 
employment of a Bid or RFP process. Board approval is required.   

  

D. General fund monies shall be used to support the normal and necessary 
operations of the District. Purchases such as alcohol, promotional items, prizes, 
and gifts shall be purchased with grant and/or other donated monies.  

  

6-4 Emergency Purchases.  

  

A. The Director has the authority to enter into purchasing agreements for products 
or services, in the event of an emergency involving potential loss of life or 
property.  

  

B. If time permits, the Director is to inform the President of the Board, or in the 
absence of the President, to inform the Secretary of the Board.  

  

C. When the authority is exercised, the Board must be notified no later than the next 
regular meeting.  

  

6-5 Authority.  

  

The Director has the authority to enter into contracts for the purchase of any product 
approved in the current fiscal year budget in accordance with the above policies.   

  

6-6 Policy Review.   

  

The Purchasing Policy shall be reviewed at least every five years. Any modifications 
shall be presented to and approved by the Board of Trustees. 

 

44--



 
ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | FINANCIAL POLICY MANUAL  

SUBJECT: Capital Asset Policy  

SECTION: 7-0  

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

 

7-1 Purpose of the Policy.  

  

The Capital Asset Policy establishes guidance in identifying, capitalizing, depreciating, and 
accounting for capital assets of the Altadena Library District.  

  

7-2 Policy.  

  

The District defines capital assets under this policy as tangible assets owned by the 
District, with a value of $5,000 or greater and a useful life of more than one year.   

  

If an asset does not meet the capitalization requirements set forth in 10.3 Capitalization, 
it is to be expensed in the year acquired. The District treats library books and other 
media resources as current period expenditures rather than a composite capital asset.   

  

Repair and Maintenance costs are defined as expenditures than maintain an asset and 
keep it in good order. All Repair and Maintenance costs are expensed in the period 
incurred.  

  

7-3 Capitalization and Valuation.  

  

The District uses the following capital asset classifications and capitalization criteria:  

  

A. Infrastructure - as defined by GASB 34, these are “long-lived capital assets 
that normally are stationary in nature and can be preserved for a significantly 
greater number of years than most capital assets.” Typically, these assets 
would include pavement, curbs and gutters, sidewalks, streetlights, sewers, 
traffics controls, etc.   

  

45

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



B. Land - includes all costs associated with the acquisition of land as well as 
costs incurred in preparing the land for its intended purpose. These costs 
include, but are not limited to, purchase and closing costs.  

  

C. Land Improvements – includes but is not limited to, landscaping, parking lots 
 and parking structures.  

  

D. Buildings – includes all costs associated with the purchase or construction of 
a new building.  

  

E. Building Improvements – includes costs that improve the useful life of the 
building, substantially change the useful life of the original space, or expand 
the total space of the building. Repairs, which are distinguished from 
improvements, are rarely capitalized because they usually do not extend the 
useful life of the asset and are classified as operational.  

  

F. Artwork – includes all costs associated with the purchase.  

  

G. Donated Assets – capitalized at acquisition value at the time of the donation. 
Acquisition value is the cost which the District would incur to acquire the 
asset at the time of the donation. If the acquisition value is not available or 
cannot be reasonably determined, an estimated cost may be applied using 
the best available information.   

  

H. Furniture and Equipment – includes but is not limited to, furniture, and 
computers. The total capitalized includes all costs associated with the 
purchase, delivery, transportation, and insurance while in transit, installation, 
and similar costs.  

  

I. Information Technology Infrastructure – includes software and hardware such 
as servers,   

  

J. Vehicles – includes costs associated with the purchase and delivery.  

  

46--



K. Construction-in-Progress (CIP) – capital improvement projects are capitalized 
as CIP until completed. Costs include labor, materials, transportation, 
engineering, and construction management.  

  

7-4 Depreciation.  

  

Depreciation is computed monthly using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the capital assets. Items purchases shall be depreciated for the full month 
of the month of purchase. Constructed assets shall be depreciated beginning in the first 
month the asset is put into use.   

  

Land, construction-in-progress and artwork are not depreciated.  

  

Estimated useful lives for the asset classifications are as follows:  

  

Infrastructure  50 years  

Buildings  50 years  

Building Improvements  20 years  

Furniture and Equipment  5 years  

Information Technology Infrastructure  7 years  

Vehicles  7 years  

    

7-5  Disposal of Capital Assets.  

  

The District may determine that a capital asset is no longer of use in daily or future 
operations and/or the cost of achieving usefulness is greater than the benefit. The Director 
shall make a recommendation to the Board for approval of one of the following methods:  

  

A. Gift to the Altadena Library District Friends of the Library.   

  

B. Discard or sell at a public auction for the benefit of the District.   

  

47--



The Director has discretion to dispose of other non-capitalized items without Board 
approval.  

  

 

7-6 Reporting.  

  

Capital Assets shall be reported in accordance with GASB 34 in the annual audited 
financial statements.  

  

7-7 Policy Review.  

  

The Capital Asset Policy shall be reviewed at least every five years. Any modifications 
shall be presented to and approved by the Board of Trustees.  

 

48--



 
ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | FINANCIAL POLICY MANUAL  

SUBJECT: Debt Policy  

SECTION: 8-0  

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

 

8-1  Purpose of the Policy.   

  

The Debt policy (“Policy”) establishes guidelines and parameters for the effective governance, 
management and administration of debt and other financing obligations issued by the Altadena 
Library District (“District”) and its related entities (such as Altadena Library District Community 
Facilities District No. 2020-1 (Facilities and Services)) and is intended to comply with California 
Government Code Section 8855(i).  

  

As used in this Policy, the “District” shall mean the Library District and/or its related entities, as 
the context may require. As used in this Policy, “debt” shall be interpreted broadly to mean 
bonds, notes, certificates of participation, financing leases, or other financing obligations, but the 
use of such term in this Policy shall be solely for convenience and shall not be interpreted to 
characterize any such obligation as indebtedness or debt within the meaning of any statutory or 
constitutional debt limitation where the substance and terms of the obligation fall within 
exceptions to such legal limitation. This Policy shall govern all debt issued by the District.  

  

The District and its related entities are committed to fiscal sustainability by employing long-term 
financial planning efforts, maintaining appropriate reserve levels, and employing prudent 
practices in governance, management, budget administration and financial reporting. This 
Policy is intended to improve the quality of decisions, assist with the determination of the 
structure of debt issuance, identify policy goals, and demonstrate a commitment to long- term 
financial planning. Adherence to a local debt policy signals to rating agencies and the capital 
markets that a government is well managed and should meet its obligations in a timely manner.  

  

8-2 Purposes for Which Debt Proceeds May Be Used.  

  

Debt may be issued to: (a) finance the acquisition, rehabilitation, replacement, or 
expansion of capital assets (including but not limited to capital improvements, facilities 
and equipment), for the following purposes: (i) acquisition or improvement of land, right-
of-way or long terms easements; (ii) acquisition of a capital asset with a useful life of five 
or more years; (iii) construction or reconstruction of a facility; (iv) although not the 
primary purpose of the financing effort, project reimbursables that include project 

49

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



planning design, engineering and other preconstruction efforts, project-associated 
furniture fixtures and equipment, capitalized interest, original issue discount, 
underwriter’s discount, other costs of issuance and other costs as permitted by law and 
(b) refund, refinance or restructure debt, subject to refunding objectives and legal 
parameters.  

  

The proceeds of any debt obligation shall be expended only for the purpose for which it 
was authorized. Debt may only be issued under Library District Board of Trustees 
(“Board”) authorization and when the District has identified sufficient funds to pay the 
obligation of principal and interest. No debt shall be issued with a maturity date greater 
than the expected useful life of the facilities or improvements being financed.  

 

8-3 Types of Debt That May Be Issued.  

  

Debt is to be issued pursuant to the authority of and in full compliance with provisions, 
restrictions and limitations of the Constitution and the laws of the State of California (the 
“State”). Various types of debt may be issued, including, but not limited to special tax 
bonds, special tax refunding bonds, revenue bonds, revenue refunding bonds, 
certificates of participation and lease- purchase obligations. Debt shall be issued as fixed 
rate debt unless the District makes a specific determination as to why variable rate debt 
would be beneficial to the District in a specific circumstance.  

  

8-4 Relationship of Debt to Capital Improvement Program.  

  

The District shall issue debt for the purposes set forth in this Policy and to implement 
policy decisions incorporated in the District’s capital budget and capital improvement 
plan (“Master Plan”). The District shall strive to fund the upkeep and maintenance of its 
infrastructure and facilities due to normal wear and tear through the expenditure of 
general funds of the District, available revenues from the District’s parcel tax and the 
services component of the CFD No. 2020-1 special tax.  

  

8-5 Policy Goals Relating to Planning Goals and Objectives.  

  

The District is committed to following sensible practices in governance, management 
and budget administration. The District shall issue debt for the purposes stated in this 
Policy and to implement policy decisions incorporated into the District’s budget. It is a 
policy goal of the District to protect taxpayers by utilizing conservative financing methods 
and techniques. The District shall comply with applicable State and federal law as it 
pertains to the maximum term of debt.  

50--



  

8-6 Internal Control Procedures.  

  

One of the District’s priorities in the management of debt is to ensure that debt proceeds 
shall be directed to the intended use for which they were issued. In furtherance of this 
priority, the following procedures shall apply:  

  

The Director or the designee of the Director shall retain a copy of each annual report 
filed with the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (“CDIAC”) pursuant 
to Section 8855(k) of the California Government Code conserving (i) debt authorized 
during the applicable reporting period (whether or not issued), (ii) debt outstanding 
during the reporting period, and (iii) the use during the reporting period of proceeds of 
issued debt.  

  

In connection with the preparation of each annual report to be filed with CDIAC pursuant 
to Section 8855(k) of the California Government Code, the Director or the designee of 
the Director shall keep a record of the original intended use for which the debt has been 
issued, and indicate whether the proceeds spent during the applicable one- year 
reporting period for such annual report comport with the intended use (at the time of 
original issuance or as modified pursuant to the following sentence). If a change in 
intended use has been authorized subsequent to the original issuance of the debt, the 
Director or the  

designee of the Director shall indicate in the record when the change in use was 
authorized and whether the Board has authorized the change in intended use. The 
Director shall consult with legal counsel and report apparent deviations from the 
intended use in debt proceeds to the Board.  

  

When debt has been issued to finance a capital project and the project timeline or scope 
of project has changed in a way that all or a portion of the debt proceeds cannot be 
expended on the original project, the Director shall consult with legal counsel as to 
available alternatives for the expenditure of the remaining debt proceeds (including 
repayment of the debt).  

  

Proceeds of debt shall be held either (a) by a third-party trustee or fiscal agent, which 
shall disburse such proceeds to or upon the order of the District upon the submission of 
one or more written requisitions by the District, or (b) by the District, to be held and 
accounted for in a separate fund or account, the expenditure of which shall be carefully 
documented by the District.  

  

51--



When issuing debt, in addition to complying with the terms of this Policy, the District shall 
comply with any other applicable policies regarding initial bond disclosure, continuing 
disclosure, post-issuance compliance, and investment and expenditure of debt 
proceeds. The District shall periodically review the requirements of and remain in 
compliance with the following: (i) any federal tax compliance requirements; (ii) any State 
requirements related to debt issuance; (iii) any continuing disclosure undertakings 
entered into by the District in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission 
Rule 15c2-12; and (iv) the District’s investment policies as they relate to the use and 
investment of debt proceeds.  

  

8-7 Policy Review.  

  

The Debt Policy shall be reviewed at least every five years. Any modifications shall be 
presented to and approved by the Board of Trustees.  

 

 

52--



 
ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | FINANCIAL POLICY Manual  

SUBJECT: Disclosure Policy  

SECTION: 9-0  

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

 

9-1 Purpose of the Policy.  

 

The Disclosure Policy (“Policy”) establishes a framework for compliance by the Altadena Library 
District and its related entity (Altadena Library District Community Facilities District No. 2020-1 
(Facilities and Services)) (together, the “District”) with its disclosure and/or contractual 
obligations with respect to the municipal securities it issues pursuant to the requirements of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”), and the Securities Act of 1933, 
as amended, including, in particular, Rule 15c2-12, as amended, promulgated under the 1934 
Act, and other applicable rules, regulations, and orders.   

  

The policy ensures compliance with federal securities laws relating to disclosure in order to:  

  

A. Comply with Law and Contract. To facilitate compliance with applicable law when 
preparing and distributing Disclosure Documents in connection with Bond 
offerings and Continuing Disclosure Documents;  

 

B. Reduce Liability. To reduce exposure (of the District and its officials and 
employees) to liability for damages and enforcement actions based on 
misstatements and omissions in Disclosure Documents by reducing the risk that 
actual material misstatements and omissions occur and make it less likely that 
any misstatement or omission that does occur was a result of intentional, 
reckless or negligent conduct;  

  

C. Reduce Borrowing Costs. To reduce borrowing costs by promoting good investor 
relations; and  

  

D. Protect the Public. To avoid damage to residents of the District and other third 
parties from misstatements or omissions in Disclosure Documents.  

  

53

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



The Disclosure Policy is intended for the internal use of the District only and is not intended to 
establish any duties in favor of or rights of any person other than the District.  

 

The officers and employees charged by the Disclosure Policy with performing or refraining from 
any action may depart from the Disclosure Policy when they and the Disclosure Officer in good 
faith determine that such departure is in the best interests of the District and consistent with the 
duties of the District under federal and State securities laws. Any deviation from the Disclosure 
Policy shall be reported to the Oversight Committee and the Board.  

  

  

9-2 Definitions.  

  

Certain terms used in the Disclosure Policy have the meanings specified below.  

  

Annual Filing means an annual report of the District filed pursuant to a Disclosure  

Agreement.  

  

Board means the Board of Trustees of the District.  

  

Bonds means bonds, notes, certificates of obligation, certificates of participation, and 
other debt obligations or securities of the District, or the payment of which the District is 
obligated to support by a lease, contract, or other arrangement, that are sold to or 
otherwise held or traded in by the public.  

  

Continuing Disclosure Documents means financial and operating data and event 
notices filed with the MSRB through EMMA pursuant to Disclosure Agreements.  

  

Disclosure Agreement means the provisions of each agreement of the District by which 
the District undertakes to provide financial and operating data periodically, and timely 
notices of certain events, to the MSRB, whether expressly or as the only nationally 
recognized municipal securities information repository under SEC Rule 15c2-12.  

 

Disclosure Counsel means counsel engaged from time to time by the District to give 
advice to the District in accordance with the Disclosure Policy and assist the District in 
preparing Disclosure Documents.  

54--



  

Disclosure Documents means Offering Documents, Continuing Disclosure Documents 
or Other EMMA Filings.  

  

Disclosure Officer means the officer(s) of the District charged with exercising the 
responsibilities of a Disclosure Officer under the Disclosure Policy, i.e., the Director or 
another employee of the District specifically designated by the Director.  

  

Disclosure Working Group for any Disclosure Documents means the officers or 
employees of the District charged with exercising the responsibilities of the Disclosure 
Working Group in preparing or checking the Disclosure Documents under the Disclosure 
Policy, as described in Section 4 of the Disclosure Policy.  

  

Dissemination Agent means a consultant engaged by the District to assist with the 
ongoing  continuing disclosure filings required under the Disclosure Agreement.  

   

EMMA means the Electronic Municipal Market Access System maintained by the 
MSRB.  

  

Material when used with respect to a fact included in a Disclosure Document means, 
generally, that a reasonable investor likely would attach significance to it in making a 
decision to buy, hold, or sell Bonds of the District. When questions of materiality arise, 
Disclosure Counsel should be consulted.  

  

MSRB means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  

  

Municipal Advisor means person or firm registered with the SEC engaged by the 
District from  time to time to provide advice to or on behalf of the District with respect to 
municipal financial  products or the issuance of municipal securities.  

  

Offering Documents means preliminary and final Official Statements and other 
documents by  which Bonds are offered to the public by the District as well as solicitation 
statements by which  the District offers to purchase its Bonds or requests consents or waivers 
regarding Bonds.  

 

Other EMMA Filings means other information filed with the MSRB through EMMA.  

55--



 

Oversight Committee means the Community Facilities District (CFD) Committee to of  

the Library District.  

  

SEC means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.   

 

State means the State of California.  

 

9-3 Policy.  

  

It is the policy of the District to comply fully with applicable securities law regarding 
 disclosure in connection with the issuance of Bonds and with the terms of its Disclosure 
 Agreements.  

  

The District expects to issue Bonds in the public debt markets and, in connection 
therewith, to issue offering documents and to enter into continuing disclosure 
undertakings to update financial and operating information contained in the offering 
documents at least annually and to file timely notices of certain events with the MSRB 
through EMMA. Investors in the District’s Bonds rely on the filings in deciding whether to 
buy, hold, or sell the District’s Bonds.  

  

Under federal securities laws, the District must exercise reasonable care to avoid 
material misstatements or omissions in preparing Official Statements that are used to 
sell Bonds in primary offerings, and it may not knowingly or recklessly include material 
misstatements or misleading statements in Disclosure Documents while its Bonds are 
outstanding. Knowledge of any officer or employee of the District as well as information 
in files of the District may be imputed to the District. Disclosure Counsel opinions may 
help to establish care but are no defense to an action for failing to disclose or misstating 
a known material fact.  

  

9-4 Procedures.  

  

The following officials and employees of the District shall implement the following 
procedures in preparing, checking, or issuing the following Disclosure Documents.  

  

56--



A. Official Statements.  

(i)  Working  Group. The Disclosure Working Group for preliminary and final 
official statements (collectively, “Official Statement”) issued in primary 
offerings shall consist of the following: the Director and Disclosure Counsel 
and the Municipal Advisor, each acting in an advisory capacity.  

 

(ii)  Establishing  Scope  and  Process. At the beginning of the disclosure 
process, the  Disclosure Working Group shall (a) determine (with input from 
the District’s   
underwriter(s), in the case of a negotiated offering) what information should 
be disclosed in the Official Statement to present fairly a description of the 
source of repayment and security for the securities being offered, including 
related financial and operating information (which may include a discussion of 
material risks related to investment in the securities), (b) assign 
responsibilities for assembling and verifying the information, and (c) establish 
a schedule for producing the information and the Official Statement that shall 
afford sufficient time for final review by the Disclosure Working Group and the 
Disclosure Officer and the approvals required by the Disclosure Policy.  

  

(iii)     Review  for  Accuracy,  and  Completeness. The members of the 
Disclosure Working Group shall review the Official Statement drafts to 
determine whether, based on information known or reported to them, (a) the 
material facts in the Official Statement appear to be consistent with those 
known to the members of the Disclosure Working Group, and (b) the Official 
Statement omits any material fact that is necessary to be included to prevent 
the Official Statement from being misleading to investors. The Disclosure 
Officer shall take such action as may be necessary, based on feedback from 
the Disclosure Working Group, to enable the Disclosure Working Group to 
conclude that the Disclosure Policy was followed and that the Official 
Statement is accurate and complete in all material respects.  

 

(iv)    Final  Approval. The Oversight Committee and the Board of Trustees 
shall approve a substantially final form of the preliminary Official Statement. 
The Disclosure Working Group shall approve the preliminary and final Official 
Statement.  

 

(v)    Documentation of Procedures. The Disclosure Officer shall compile and 
retain a file of the actions taken to prepare, check, and approve the Official 
Statement.  

  

B. Annual Filing  

57



(i)  Working Group. The Disclosure Working Group for the Annual Filing shall 
consist of the Director and the Dissemination Agent with Disclosure Counsel 
review, if necessary.  

 
(ii)  Preparation, Review and Approval. The Disclosure Officer, with the 
assistance of the Dissemination Agent, shall prepare a draft Annual Filing no 
later than [30 days] prior to the deadline for filing the Annual Filing. The 
members of the Disclosure Working Group shall review the Annual Filing 
drafts to determine whether, based on information known or reported to them, 
(a) the Disclosure Policy was followed, (b) the material facts in the Annual 
Filing appear to be consistent with those known to the members of the 
Disclosure Working Group, and (c) the Annual Filing omits any material fact 
that is necessary to be included to prevent the Annual Filing from being 
misleading to investors. The Disclosure Working Group shall conclude that 
the Disclosure Policy was followed and that the Annual Filing is accurate and 
complete in all material respects 
 
The Disclosure Working Group shall approve the final draft of the Annual 
Filing. The Annual Filing shall not be issued until approved by the Disclosure 
Working Group. 
  
(iii)   Posting  and  Documentation. The Dissemination Agent, on behalf of the 
District, shall file the Annual Filing with the MSRB through EMMA by the 
deadline established by the Disclosure Agreements. The Dissemination 
Agent, on behalf of the District, shall exercise reasonable care to file the 
Annual Filing in the format and with the identifying information required by the 
Disclosure Agreements, including applicable CUSIP numbers for the District’s 
Bonds. The Disclosure Officer shall compile and retain a file of the actions 
taken to prepare, check, and approve the Annual Filing, and approvals of the 
Disclosure Working Group. 

  

C. Event Notices.  

  

(i)    Identification  of  Reportable  Events  and  Preparation  of  Event  
Notices. The Disclosure Officer shall maintain a list of events of which the 
District is required to provide notice to the MSRB pursuant to the Disclosure 
Agreements. The Disclosure Officer shall assess the materiality of any 
reported event with the assistance of legal counsel (reportable under the 
Disclosure Agreements only if material) and, if notice of the event must be 
given (or if no materiality standard applies to that particular event and 
prepare, or cause to be prepared, an Event Notice giving notice of the event.  

  

58



(ii)    Posting and Documentation. The Disclosure Officer or Dissemination 
Agent shall file the Event Notice with the MSRB through EMMA by the 
deadline established by the Disclosure Agreements or, if the facts cannot be 
correctly and fairly described by the deadline, then as soon thereafter as 
possible. The Disclosure Officer or Dissemination Agent shall exercise 
reasonable care to file the Event Notice in the format and with the identifying 
information required by the Disclosure Agreements, including CUSIP 
numbers for the applicable Bonds. The Disclosure Officer shall compile and 
retain a file of the actions taken to report each event and prepare, check, and 
approve the notice of the event.  

  

9-5  Training.  

  

The Disclosure Officer and each officer or employee designated as a source of data for 
a Disclosure Document pursuant to the Disclosure Policy shall undergo initial training 
prior to each Bond issue and periodic training as necessary to address any changes in 
law. The training program and materials shall be prepared by or with the assistance of 
Disclosure Counsel. The training program shall impart the requirements of federal and 
State securities laws and the Disclosure Agreements, the meaning of “material,” and the 
duties of such officers and employees under the Disclosure Policy.  

  

9-6  Policy Review.  

  

The Disclosure Policy shall be reviewed at least every five years. Any modifications shall 
be presented to and approved by the Board of Trustees.  

 

59



 
ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT | FINANCIAL POLICY MANUAL  

SUBJECT: Tax Policy  

SECTION: 10-0  

BOARD APPROVED: MM/DD/YYYY 

 

10-1 Purpose of the Policy.  

  

The Tax Policy and post-issuance compliance procedures (“Tax Policy”) describes the courses 
of action to be taken by the Altadena Library District to: (i) maximize the District’s compliance 
with the federal tax law requirements applicable to tax-exempt bonds; and (ii) identify and 
resolve any noncompliance matters, on a timely basis, to preserve the tax-exempt status of tax-
exempt bonds.  

  

The approval of the Tax Policy by the District shall be treated by the District as the 
establishment of written procedures to: (i) ensure that any Bonds that no longer qualify for tax- 
exempt status are identified and remediated in accordance with the requirements of the Code 
and applicable regulations, including the remediation provisions of Treas. Reg. Sec. 1.141-12 or 
other remedial actions authorized by the Commissioner of the Internal Revenue Service under 
Treas. Reg. Sec. 1.141-12(h); and (ii) monitor compliance with the requirements of Section 148 
of the Code (which include arbitrage, yield restriction and rebate requirements) and related 
regulations.  

  

10-2 Definitions.  

  

Certain terms used in the Disclosure Policy have the meanings specified below.  

  

Board means the Board of Trustees of the District.  

  

Bond Counsel means a firm of nationally recognized bond counsel engaged from time 
to time by the District to give advice to the District with respect to the Tax Policy.  

  

Bond Documents means documents relating to Bonds, including, but not limited to the 
fiscal  agent agreement and tax certificate.  

  

60

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



Bonds means bonds, notes, certificates of obligation, certificates of participation, and 
other debt obligations or securities of the District, or the payment of which the District is 
obligated to support by a lease, contract, or other arrangement, that are sold to or 
otherwise held or traded in by the public.  

  

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  

  

10-3 Authority.  

  

The Director, or another employee of the District specifically designated by the Director, 
shall be responsible for ensuring post-issuance and remedial action compliance with the 
requirements of any tax and financing documents for the District’s outstanding Bonds. 
The Director shall consult with Bond Counsel and other professionals as needed and 
may delegate certain duties, such as assisting with arbitrage compliance, to 
professionals as needed.  

  

10-4 Compliance with Covenants in Bond Documents and Regular Due Diligence 
Reviews.  

  

The Director shall ensure compliance with all covenants made by the District in the Bond 
Documents which must be complied with to maintain the preferential tax status of the 
Bonds, including, but not limited to use of Bond-financed facilities, timely completion of 
arbitrage rebate calculations, required filings and restrictions on investment of Bond 
proceeds. The Director shall review the Tax Policy and the Bond Documents at least 
annually for the purposes of identifying any possible violation of federal tax requirements 
related to Bonds and to ensure timely correction of any possible violations. If any 
possible violation is identified, the Director shall notify Bond Counsel so any expected or 
existing violation can be corrected.  

  

10-5 Federal Tax Law Compliance.  

  

A. Proper Use of and Allocation of Bond Proceeds. The Director shall ensure that 
Bond proceeds are allocated to expenditures in a manner that is consistent with 
the purpose for each Bond issue as set forth in the Bond Documents. The 
Director shall also ensure that allocations of Bond proceeds to expenditures are 
timely made in accordance with the applicable tax regulations. As of the date of 
adoption of the Tax Policy, for each Bond issue, allocations of Bond proceeds to 
expenditures must be made within 18 months after the later of the date the 
expenditure was made or the date the project was placed in service, but not later 

61



than the earlier of five years after the Bonds were issued or 60 days after the 
Bond issue is retired.  

  

B. Investment of Bond Proceeds. The Director shall ensure that Bond proceeds are 
invested in investments that are permissible under the Bond Documents, and any 
applicable State laws and federal tax laws (e.g., federal tax law requires that 
investments purchased with Bond proceeds must be purchased and sold at fair 
market value).  

  

C. Arbitrage Calculations. The Director shall ensure the timely completion of 
arbitrage yield restriction and rebate calculations and filings for each issue of 
Bonds. The Director shall retain a rebate calculation agent to perform the rebate 
calculations.  

  

D. Yield Reduction/Rebate Payments. The Director shall ensure the timely payment, 
if applicable, of yield reduction payments and/or rebate, for each issue of Bonds. 
As of the date of adoption of the Tax Policy, rebate payments are due as follows: 
(i) 60 days after the end of the fifth Bond year; (ii) 60 days after the end of every 
fifth bond year thereafter; and (iii) 60 days after retirement of the last Bond of an 
issue.  

  

E. Use of Bond-financed Facilities. The Director shall review any agreement or 
other arrangement for the sale, lease or use of any portion of any Bond-financed 
facilities, including, but not limited to service, vendor and management contracts, 
research agreements, licenses to use Bond-financed property or naming rights 
agreements for compliance with federal tax laws and the Bond Documents. The 
Director shall consult with Bond Counsel for further guidance if deemed 
necessary.  

  

F. Post-Issuance Transactions. A significant modification of the terms of Bonds may 
result in Bonds being deemed refunded or “reissued.” Such an event shall 
require, among other things, the filing of new information returns with the federal 
government and the execution of a new arbitrage certificate. The Director shall 
consult with Bond Counsel before making any changes or amendments to Bond 
Documents for a Bond issue, including, but not limited to entering into investment 
agreements; making any change in security for the Bonds; terminating or 
appointing a successor trustee; releasing any liens; or reissuing a Bond issue.  

  

G. Remedial Action. If at any time during the life of a Bond issue, the Director 
discovers that a violation of federal tax law requirements applicable to that issue 

62



may have occurred, the Director shall consult with Bond Counsel to determine 
whether any such violation actually has occurred. If the Director determines that 
a violation has in fact occurred, the Director shall inform the Board of the same 
and shall take prompt action to accomplish an available remedial action under 
applicable regulations or to enter into a closing agreement with the Internal 
Revenue Service under the Voluntary Closing Agreement Program or other 
future published guidance.  

  

10-6 Record Retention.  

  

Management and retention of records related to the District’s Bonds shall be supervised 
by the Director. The Director shall retain for the life of Bonds plus the life of any 
refunding Bonds plus ten years records relating to: (i) general information regarding the 
Bond issue; (ii) expenditure of Bond proceeds; (iii) use, ownership and disposition of 
Bond-financed facilities; and (iv) investment of gross proceeds of Bonds. Records may 
be in the form of documents or electronic copies of documents, appropriately indexed to 
specific Bond issues and compliance functions.  

  

10-7 Training.  

  

Training for the Director and for any persons at the District to whom the Director 
specifically delegates any duties in the Tax Policy shall undergo initial training with Bond 
Counsel prior to each Bond issue and periodic training as necessary to discuss 
monitoring compliance with applicable federal tax laws relating to Bonds.  

  

10-8 Policy Review.  

  

The Tax Policy shall be reviewed annually. Any modifications shall be presented to and 
approved by the Board of Trustees. 

 

63--



 
 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES – BUDGET COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM V.E. STAFF REPORT FOR MAY 2022 

 

REPORT: Agenda Item V.e. MEETING DATE: May 5, 2022 

PREPARED BY: Nikki Winslow LOCATION: Virtual Zoom Meeting 

 

 

TITLE: Review and Approval of Budget Committee Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 

BACKGROUND:  

Altadena Library District’s (ALD) Budget Committee is a standing committee of the Board of 
Trustees. As such, the committee, according to the District’s Financial Policies, needs to meet 
on a quarterly basis to review ALD’s current budget, have a mid-year budget review, and draft 
the following fiscal year’s budget.  

Adopting the meeting schedule provided in the following this report, or adopting an amended 
version of the meeting schedule will allow the committee members to prepare ahead of time and 
comply with the District’s Financial Policies.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends that the Budget Committee review and approve the Budget Committee 
Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2022-2023.  

64

FIAltadena 
~ Libraries 



Board of Library Trustees – 
Budget Committee 

Quarterly Meetings are held the first 
Thursday of the Month (unless otherwise 

noted) 

Location: Altadena Library District Barbara J. Pearson 
Community Room Time: 1:00 p.m. (unless otherwise noted) 

Agendas are posted 72 hours prior to the 
meetings. 

Meeting Dates for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 

August 4, 2022 

November 3, 2022 

February 2, 2023 

May 4, 2023 

Per the Brown Act, the Committee by a majority vote or the Chair, 
at their discretion, may call for a Special Meeting.  

16 of 19

65

D Altadena 
~ Libraries 



 
 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES – BUDGET COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM V.F. REPORT FOR MAY 2022 

 

REPORT: Agenda Item V.f. MEETING DATE: May 5, 2022 

PREPARED BY: Nikki Winslow LOCATION: Virtual Zoom Meeting 

 

 

TITLE: Review of the Adopted Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget for the Local Agency Formation 
Commission of the County of Los Angeles (LAFCO) 

 

BACKGROUND:  

Paul Novak, Executive Officer of the Local Agency Formation Commission for the County of Los 
Angeles (LAFCO), pursuant to Government Code § 56381(a), mailed the District a copy of the 
adopted FY 2022-23 Budget for the Commission (LAFCO).  LAFCO adopted the budget at its 
meeting on Wednesday, April 13, 2022, having conducted the two required public hearings 
(March 9th and April 13th). 

 

The adopted LAFCO final budget for Fiscal Year 2022-23 is $1,641,843, which is a 6.7% 
increase from the Fiscal Year 2021-22 budget.  The largest increase in their budget went to 
Salaries and Employee Benefits, with that being a 12.1% over their expenses last year.  
Altadena Library District’s appointment for Fiscal Year 2021-22 was $1,256, which should 
increase by 6.7%, putting our appointment for this year at 1,340. 

Agenda Item V.f. was provided to the Budget Committee as an informational item, therefore 
staff has no recommendation for the committee.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The 6.7% increase to the LAFCO Fiscal Year 2022-23 budget is an $84 fiscal impact to ALD. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

No recommendation.  

66

FIAltadena 
~ Libraries 



Adopted 4/13/2022

ADOPTED ADOPTED 
FINAL BUDGET FINAL BUDGET

2021-22 2022-23

EXPENSES
50000 Salaries and Employee Benefits
50001 Employee Salaries 685,000$                 787,300$                  14.9%
50015 Employer Paid Pension Contribution 142,100                   186,600                    31.3%
50016 Accrued vacation and sick cashout 13,000                     13,000                      0.0%
50017 Commissioner Stipends 20,000                     20,000                      0.0%
50018 Worker's Compensation Insurance 10,500                     10,500                      0.0%
50019 Insurance (Health, Disability, Life) 142,132                   139,000                    -2.2%
50020 Payroll Taxes 13,000                     17,000                      30.8%
50022 OPEB - Existing Retirees 20,000                     21,000                      5.0%

50022.2 LACERA OPEB Administratrion Costs 20,000$                   -$                          -

Total Salaries & Employee Benefits 1,065,732$              1,194,400$               12.1%

50000A Office Expense
50025 Rent 132,571$                 138,182$                  4.2%
50026 Communications 11,000                     10,000                      -9.1%
50027 Supplies 7,400                        8,000                        8.1%
50029 Computer Software 6,200                        6,200                        0.0%
50030 Equipment lease 6,500                        5,000                        -23.1%
50031 Employee & Guest Parking Fees 8,000                        8,000                        0.0%
50032 Property/Liability Insurance 14,000                     20,000                      42.9%
50033 Agency Membership Dues 14,000                     14,156                      1.1%
50040 Information Technology/Programming 8,000                        9,000                        12.5%
50052 Legal Notices 4,000                        4,000                        0.0%
50054 Postage 4,000                        4,000                        0.0%
50056 Printing/Copy Charges 4,400                        4,400                        0.0%
50057 Conferences/Travel - Commissioners 10,000                     10,000                      0.0%
50058 Conference/Travel - Staff 10,000                     10,000                      0.0%
50060 Auto Reimbursement 7,000                        7,000                        0.0%
50061 Various Vendors 11,000                     11,000                      0.0%
50065 Miscellaneous - Other 7,500                        7,500                        0.0%
50067 Computer-Copier-Misc Equipment 2,000                        2,000                        0.0%

Total Office Expenses 267,571$                 278,438$                  4.1%

50000C Professional Services
50076 Legal services 80,000                     80,000                      0.0%
50077 Accounting & Bookkeeping 20,000                     20,000                      0.0%

50077.2 Audit/Financial Statements 7,850                        8,005                        2.0%
50077.1 Payroll Service 5,600                        6,000                        7.1%
50078 Contract Services 12,000                     5,000                        -58.3%
50081 Municipal Service Reviews -                            160,000                    100%

Total Professional Services 125,450$                 279,005$                  122.4%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,458,753$              1,751,843$               20.1%

20020 OPEB Liability - Reserves 200,000$                 -$                          -

Total Contingencies and Reserves Set Aside 200,000$                 -$                          -

Total Appropriations 1,658,753$              1,751,843$               5.6%

% Variance FY 
2021-22 Final to 

2022-23 Rec Final

   

ACCT. # ACCOUNT NAME

ADOPTED FINAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-23

Page 1 of 2

67



Adopted 4/13/2022

ADOPTED ADOPTED 
FINAL BUDGET FINAL BUDGET

2021-22 2022-23

% Variance FY 
2021-22 Final to 

2022-23 Rec Final

   

ACCT. # ACCOUNT NAME

ADOPTED FINAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-23

40000 REVENUES 
40005 Filing  Fees 100,000$                 100,000$                  0.0%
40006 Processing Fees 4,000                        -                            -
40007 Interest Income 15,000                     10,000                      -33.3%
40008 Other Income 500                           -                            -

Total Revenues 119,500$                 110,000$                  -7.9%

NET OPERATING COSTS 1,539,253$              1,641,843$               6.7%

 Local Agency Apportionment
40001 City of Los Angeles 236,812                   252,595                    6.7%
40002 County of Los Angeles 592,021                   631,479                    6.7%
40003 Other Cities (87) 355,210                   378,884                    6.7%
40004 Special Districts 355,210                   378,884                    6.7%

Total Local Agency Apportionment 1,539,253$              1,641,843$               6.7%
*Estimates based on FY 2021-22 Billing.  Invoices for FY 2022-23 are generated by the County Auditor Controller's Office.

FY 2022-23 Final Budget Estimates*

Page 2 of 2

68


	02022.05.05 - Budget - Agenda
	2022.02.03 - Budget - Minutes
	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.a.  -  UAL Policy Staff Report
	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.a.  - UAL Policy Staff Report Policy Draft - Supporting -UPDATED STYLE FORMAT -
	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.b. -  Salary Schedule 22-23
	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.b. - Salary Schedule 22-23 - Supporting
	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.c. -  FY22-23 Budget Proposal Staff Report
	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.c. - FY22 23 ALD Budget Proposal - Supporting
	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.d. -  Financial Policies Staff Report
	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.d. - Financial Policies Staff Report - Updated Financial Policies - Supporting
	0-0  Table of Contents - Financial Policy Update
	TABLE OF CONTENTS

	1-0 Budget Policy - Financial Policy Update
	2-0 Reserve Policy - Financial Policy Update
	3-0 Audit Policy - Financial Policy Update
	4-0 Investment Policy - Financial Policy Update
	5-0 Contracts & Agreements Policy - Financial Policy Update
	6-0 Purchasing Policy - Financial Policy Update
	7-0 Capital Asset Policy - Financial Policy Update
	8-0 Debt Policy - Financial Policy Update
	9-0 Disclosure Policy - Financial Policy Update
	10-0 Tax Policy - Financial Policy Update

	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.e.  - Meeting Schedule 22-23
	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.e. - Meeting Schedule 22-23 Calendar - Supporting
	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.f. -  LAFCO FY22-23 Budget
	2022.05.05 - Agenda Item V.f. - LAFCO Fiscal Year 2022-23 Final Budget 04-13-22 - Supporting



